
AGENDA 
CITY OF PEARLAND 

PLANNING & ZONING COMMISSION 

   Henry Fuertes 
 P&Z CHAIRPERSON 

          Vacant               
P&Z VICE-CHAIRPERSON 

COMMISSIONERS 

            Linda Cowles                 Mary Starr 

     Daniel Tunstall Ginger McFadden 

 Elizabeth McLane 

 NOVEMBER 18, 2013 6:30 p.m. 

In accordance with the Texas Open Meeting Act the Agenda is posted for public information, at all 
times, for at least 72 hours preceding the scheduled time of the meeting on the bulletin board 
located at the front entrance of the City Hall, 3519 Liberty Drive. 



AGENDA – REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, TO BE HELD ON MONDAY, NOVEMBER 18, 
2013, AT 6:30 P.M., 2nd FLOOR CONFERENCE ROOM, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY 
DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
I. CALL TO ORDER 

 
II. EXCUSE ABSENCE  

  
Excuse absence of Commissioner Ginger McFadden from the P&Z Workshop 
Meeting of November 4, 2013.  

 
Excuse absence of Commissioner Daniel Tunstall from the P&Z Workshop 
Meeting of November 4, 2013.  

 
III. ELECTION OF VICE-CHAIRPERSON 

 
IV. SETTING JANUARY 6, 2014 AS DATE FOR JOINT PUBLIC HEARING IN 

JANUARY 2014 
 
V. APPROVAL OF MINUTES 

 
Approve the Minutes of the October 21, 2013, P&Z Regular Meeting, held at 
6:30 p.m. 

 
VI. NEW BUSINESS 

 
A. CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE 
PERMIT NO. CUP 2013-10 
 

A request of Greg McGahey, applicant for CVS Pharmacy, Inc., for approval 
of a Conditional Use Permit, within the General Business Retail (GB) 
zoning district, to allow an Emergency Care Clinic, on approximately 1.08 
acres of land on the following described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 1, CVS Sherwood, recorded in Volume 24, 
Page 170, B.C.P.R., being out of Thomas J. Green Survey, A-198, 
Brazoria County, Texas 

 
General Location: 2906 Broadway St., Pearland, TX 

 
 
 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
November 18, 2013 

Page 1 of 4 
 



B.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT 
CODE T-16 

 
Consider proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code. 

 
C.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF LAUREL 
HEIGHTS AT SAVANNAH SECTION 1 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section One, generally located at the Northeast corner of 
Post Road (CR 58) and Linden Creek Lane, proposing a 61 lot single-family 
residential subdivision, on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 17.1 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Survey, Abstract 302, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Located at the Northeast corner of Post Road (CR 58) and 
Linden Creek Lane 

 
D.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF LAUREL 
HEIGHTS AT SAVANNAH SECTION 2 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section Two, generally East of  Linden Creek Lane, 
North of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section One, proposing a 40 lot single-
family residential subdivision, on  the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 9.1 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Survey, Abstract 302, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Located East of Linden Creek Lane, North of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section. 

 
E.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - FINAL PLAT OF LAUREL 
HEIGHTS AT SAVANNAH SECTION 3 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section Three, generally located at the Northwest 
corner of Post Road (CR 58) and Linden Creek Lane, proposing a 28 lot 
single-family residential subdivision, on the following described property, to 
wit 

Decision 
Date 

11/22/13 

Decision 
Date: 

11/22/13 
 

Decision 
Date:  

11/22/13 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
November 18, 2013 

Page 2 of 4 
 



 
Legal Description: Being 31.2 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Survey, Abstract 302, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas. 
 
General Location: Located at the Northwest corner of Post Road (CR 58) 
and Linden Creek Lane 

 
F.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF 
SOUTHERN TRAILS SECTION 13 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of CL 
Ashton Woods, LP, owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Southern Trails 
Section 13, a 36 lot single-family residential subdivision on the following 
described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: Being 8.1 acres of land out of the H.T. & B. R.R. 
Company Survey, Sec. 80, A-564, City of Pearland, Brazoria County Texas, 
also being out of Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision as 
recorded in Volume 2, Page 98 B.C.P.R. City of Pearland, Brazoria County, 
Texas. 
 
General Location: Approximately 500’ south of the southeast corner of the 
intersection of Kingsley and Walnut Place Ln. 

 
 
G.  CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY REPLAT OF 
SHADOW CREEK RANCH SF-56 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant, on behalf of 741 SCR, 
LTD, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - 
SF 56, a 61 lot single-family residential subdivision on the following described 
property, to wit 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 15.913 acres of land situated in the S.G. 
Haynie Survey, Abstract 620, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas also 
being a replat of Shadow Creek Ranch SF-56F, recorded under F.N. 
20060295, F.B.C.O.P.R. 
 
General Location: Located at the Southwest corner of Windward Bay Dr. 
and Arcadia Bay Dr. 

 
H.   DISCUSSION ITEMS 

 
1. Comprehensive Plan Update 

Decision 
Date:  

11/22/13 

Decision 
Date:  

11/22/13 

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
November 18, 2013 

Page 3 of 4 
 



2. Zoning Update 
3. Texas APA Conference 
4. Commissioners Activity Report 
5. Next P&Z Regular Meeting – December 2, 2013 

 
VII. ADJOURNMENT 

 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, please call 
Young Lorfing at 281-652-1655 prior to the meeting so that appropriate 
arrangements can be made. 
 
I, Debbie Cody, Office Assistant of the City of Pearland, Texas, do hereby certify that 
the foregoing agenda was posted in a place convenient to the general public at City Hall 
on the 15th  day of November, 2013, A.D., at 5:30 p.m. 
 
 
      ________________________________ 
      Debbie Cody, Office Assistant 
 
 
Agenda removed  __________________  day of November 2013. 
 
 
  

 
P&Z Regular Meeting 
November 18, 2013 

Page 4 of 4 
 



 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

EXCUSE ABSENCE 
 
 
 



 

 
 
 
 
 
 

APPROVAL  
 

OF 
 

MINUTES 



MINUTES OF THE REGULAR MEETING OF THE PLANNING AND ZONING 
COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS, HELD ON MONDAY, 
OCTOBER 21, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., CITY COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 
LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, TEXAS. 
 
 
CALL TO ORDER 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes called the meeting to order at 8:45 p.m. with the 
following present: 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes   P&Z Vice-Chairperson Matthew Hanks 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr   P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall  P&Z Commissioner Ginger McFadden 
 
APPROVAL OF MINUTES 
 
A motion was made by Commissioner Daniel Tunstall and seconded by Commissioner 
Mary Starr for the approval of the Minutes, October 7, 2013, P&Z Regular Meeting, held 
at 6:30 p.m. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  The minutes of the regular P&Z Meeting of October 7, 2013 was 
approved. 
 
NEW BUSINESS 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. 
CUP 2013-08 

 
A request of Greg McGahey, applicant for Rebound Properties, Limited, owner, for 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit, within a General Business Retail District (GB) on 
approximately 1.01 acres of land, to allow an Emergency Care Clinic on the following 
described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Reserve “A,” being 1.01 acres of the Final Plat of Sunrise Lake 
Village; a 8.42 acre tract, situated in the John W. Maxey Survey, Abstract 721, and 
being part of and out of a 208.10 acre tract described by deed recorded in Volume 
1107, Page 859 of the Deed Records of Brazoria County, City of Pearland, Texas. 

  
General Location: 2752 Sunrise Blvd., Pearland, TX   
 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall made the motion, and P&Z Vice-Chairperson 
Matthew Hanks seconded. 
 

Minutes of the  
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 1 of 6 

 



City Planner Harold Ellis read the staff report stating staff recommended approval with 
one condition: 

1. The site shall be redeveloped in accordance with the site plan, as submitted by 
the applicant, and all applicable City requirement 

 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall amended his original motion, and P&Z Vice-
Chairperson Matthew Hanks seconded the amendment to include staffs condition of 
approval. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 2013-08 was approved. 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – ZONE CHANGE NO. 2013-16Z 
 
A request of James Leach, applicant/owner, for approval of a change in zoning from 
Garden/O’Day-Mixed Use (G/O-MU) zoning district to General Commercial (GC) zoning 
district on approximately for .63 acres of land, on the following described property, to 
wit: 
 
Legal Description: Block 3, Lot 9, being .63 acres of the Final Plat of Hickory Creek 
Place; a subdivision of 100.09 acres of land comprised of 10 blocks and 133 lots; being 
s subdivision of tracts 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of a subdivision of the 
H.T. & B. R.R. CO. Survey, Section 7, Abstract 219, Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location:  2106 O’Day Road, Pearland, TX 
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve, and P&Z Commissioner 
Linda Cowles seconded. 
 
City Planner Harold Ellis stated staff was unable to make a recommendation for 
approval. 
 
Deputy City Attorney Nghiem Doan spoke, as did Director of Community Development 
Lata Krishnarao discussing options the P&Z Commission could take. 
 
Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao stated the Commission could 
recommend an amendment to Unified Development Code T-16 to change the zone for 
Garden O’Day Mixed Use and then only a Conditional Use Permit would be required.  
The UDC T-16 is set for approval in January 2014. 
 
There was much discussion regarding the proposed use.  The Commission felt this was 
a good business but was concerned about spot zoning. 
 
The vote was 0-6.  Zone Change No. 2013-16Z was denied with the Commission 
stating they would rather see the UDC T-16 amend the Garden O’Day Mixed Use 

Minutes of the  
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 2 of 6 

 



District (GO/MU) Zone to allow the proposed use with a Conditional Use Permit being 
required. 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP 
2013-09 
 
A request of James Leach, applicant/owner, for approval of a Conditional Use Permit, 
within a proposed General Commercial (GC) zoning district, to allow an Auto Repair 
(Major) facility on approximately for .63 acres of land, on the following described 
property, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: Block 3, Lot 9, being .63 acres of the Final Plat of Hickory Creek 
Place; a subdivision of 100.09 acres of land comprised of 10 blocks and 133 lots; being 
s subdivision of tracts 17, 18, 19, 20, 21, 30, 31, 32, 33 and 34 of a subdivision of the 
H.T. & B. R.R. CO. Survey, Section 7, Abstract 219, Brazoria County, Texas. 
  
General Location: 2106 O’Day Rd, Pearland, TX  
 
P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles made the motion to approve, and P&Z Commissioner 
Daniel Tunstall seconded. 
 
The vote was 0-6.  Zone Change No. 2013-16Z was denied with the Commission 
stating they would rather see the UDC T-16 amend the Garden O’Day Mixed Use 
District (GO/MU) Zone to allow the proposed use with a Conditional Use Permit being 
required. 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF HIGHLAND 
CROSSING SECTION 1 

 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on behalf of Beazer 
Homes Texas, LP, owner for approval of the Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1, 
generally located at the 1300 Block of Old Alvin Road, on the following described 
property, to wit 

 
Legal Description: Being 28.1 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R. Co. Survey, A-233 
and R.B. Lyle Survey, A-542 City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: 1300 Block of Old Alvin Road 
 
P&Z Commissioner Mary Starr made the motion to approve, and P&Z Commissioner 
Linda Cowles seconded. 
 
Associate Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating there were no outstanding 
conditions. 

Minutes of the  
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 3 of 6 

 



 
The vote was 6-0.  Final Plat of Highland Crossing Section 1 was approved. 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – FINAL PLAT OF SAVANNAH BEND 
SECTION 5 
 
A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, Inc., applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Savannah Bend 
Section Five, a 30 lot single-family residential subdivision located at the 13000 Block of 
Savannah Bend Dr. on the following described property, to wit 

 
Legal Description: Being 15.5 acres of land located in the A.C.H. & B. Survey, 
Abstract 403 and J.S. Tamage Survey, Abstract 562, Brazoria County, Texas, more 
particularly being a portion of the residue of a called 161.460 acre tract (described as 
Tract 5) conveyed to Savannah Development, LTD., by an instrument of record File 
#00-037203, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas (B.C.O.R.) also being an 
instrument of record in File No. 200080225, Official Public Records of Fort Bend 
County, Texas. 

 
General Location: 13000 Block of Savannah Bend Drive 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Matthew Hanks made the motion to approve, and P&Z 
Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
Associate Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating there were no outstanding 
conditions. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  The Final Plat of Savannah Bend Section 5 was approved. 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION - MASTER PLAT OF SILVERLAKE 
PARKWAY TRACT 
 
A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on behalf of 
Beazer Homes, LP c/o Greg Coleman, owner for approval of the Master Plat of 
Silverlake Parkway Tract, generally located at the 2500 Block of Miller Ranch Rd. on the 
following described property, to wit 

 
Legal Description: Being 33.3 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R.R. Co. Survey, A-
233 and R.B. Lyle Survey, Section 85, A-304 City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: 2500 Block of Miller Ranch Road 
 
P&Z Commissioner Linda Cowles made the motion to approve, and P&Z Commissioner 
Mary Starr seconded. 

Minutes of the  
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 4 of 6 

 



 
Associate Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating there were no outstanding 
conditions. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  The Master Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract was approved. 

 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – PRELIMINARY PLAT OF 
SILVERLAKE PARKWAY TRACT SECTION 1 

 
A request by Geoff Freeman of Kerry R. Gilbert and Associates, applicant, on behalf of 
Beazer Homes, LP c/o Greg Coleman, owner for approval of the Preliminary Plat of 
Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1, generally located at the 2500 Block of Miller Ranch 
Rd. on the following described property, to wit 

 
Legal Description: Being 21 acres of land out of the H.T. &B.R.R.R. Co. Survey, A-233 
and R.B. Lyle Survey, Section 85, A-304 City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: 2500 Block of Miller Ranch Road 
 
P&Z Vice Chairperson Matthew Hanks made the motion to approve, and P&Z 
Commissioner Mary Starr seconded. 
 
Associate Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating there were no outstanding 
conditions. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  The Preliminary Plat of Silverlake Parkway Tract Section 1 was 
approved. 
 
CONSIDERATION AND POSSIBLE ACTION – MASTER PLAT OF THE CENTER AT 
PEARLAND PARKWAY 
 
A request by Kristin LeBlanc of Halff Associates, Inc., applicant, on behalf of Stream 
Realty Partners, owner for approval of the Master Plat of The Center at Pearland 
Parkway, generally located at the 11200 Block of Pearland Parkway., on the following 
described property, to wit 

 
Legal Description: Being 27.0508 acres of land located in the Thomas J. Green 
Survey, Abstract Number 198, City of Pearland. Brazoria County, Texas. 

 
General Location: 11200 Block of Pearland Parkway  
 
P&Z Commissioner Daniel Tunstall made the motion to approve, and P&Z 
Commissioner Linda Cowles seconded. 
 

Minutes of the  
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 5 of 6 

 



Associate Planner Ian Clowes read the staff report stating there were no outstanding 
conditions. 
 
The vote was 6-0.  The Master Plat of the Center at Pearland Parkway was approved. 
 
DISCUSSION ITEMS 
 
Comprehensive Plan Update – Director of Community Development Lata Krishnarao 
spoke with regards to the Mind Mixer. 
Commissioners Activity Report – no discussion. 
Next P&Z Regular Meeting – November 4, 2013 and a UDC T-16 Workshop. 
 
ADJOURNMENT 
 
P&Z Chairperson Henry Fuertes adjourned the P&Z Regular meeting at 10:08 p.m. 
 
These minutes are respectfully submitted by: 
 
 
 
      ___________________________________ 
      Judy Brown, Office Supervisor 
 
Minutes approved as submitted and/or corrected on this 18th day of November 2013, 
A.D. 
 
 
 
 
      ____________________________________ 
      Henry Fuertes, P&Z Chairperson 

Minutes of the  
P&Z Regular Meeting 

October 21, 2013 
Page 6 of 6 

 



 
 
 
 
 

NEW 
BUSINESS 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

A 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 
TEXAS, TO BE HELD NOVEMBER 18, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, 
TEXAS 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 
 
CONDITIONAL USE PERMIT NO. CUP 2013-10 
 
A request of Greg McGahey, applicant for CVS Pharmacy, Inc., for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit, within the General Business Retail (GB) zoning district, 
to allow an Emergency Care Clinic, on approximately 1.08 acres of land on the 
following described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 1, CVS Sherwood, recorded in Volume 24, Page 
170, B.C.P.R., being out of Thomas J. Green Survey, A-198, Brazoria County, 
Texas 

  
General Location: 2906 Broadway St., Pearland, TX   

 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 

A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 
please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 
meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



 
 

      

JOINT PUBLIC HEARING AGENDA ITEM 
MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 2013 

 

 
 

Conditional Use Permit No. CUP 2013-10 
 

A request of Greg McGahey, applicant for CVS Pharmacy, Inc., for approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit, within the General Business Retail (GB) zoning district, to allow 
an Emergency Care Clinic, on approximately 1.08 acres of land on the following 
described property, to wit: 

 
Legal Description: Lot 1, Block 1, CVS Sherwood, recorded in Volume 24, Page 
170, B.C.P.R., being out of Thomas J. Green Survey, A-198, Brazoria County, 
Texas 
  
General Location: 2906 Broadway St., Pearland, TX   

 
APPROVAL PROCESS:  After the Joint Public Hearing, the requested 

Conditional Use Permit application will be considered as 
follows: 

 
Planning and Zoning Commission:        November 18, 2013* 
City Council for First Reading:                December 9, 2013* 
City Council for Second Reading:          December 16, 2013* 

 
 (*dates subject to change) 

 
 
SUMMARY:  Greg McGahey, applicant for CVS Pharmacy, Inc., owner; is requesting 
approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) to allow for a 24-hr Emergency Care Clinic; 
First Choice Emergency Room (FCER), within the General Business Retail (GB) zoning 
district.  The existing GB zoning district permits the proposed use, with approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 
 
The applicant proposes to construct a 6,500 square foot, building consisting of patient care 
areas, x-ray and CT examination rooms, a lobby and support space, as well as an area to 
serve as administrative offices connected to the ER.  Two (2) entrances will serve the ER; 
one for patient drop off and one for ambulance pick up, with canopies to provide protection 
from the weather to patients.   
 
 

JPH 11-18-13 
CUP 2013-10 

Page 1 
 



 
 

For reference, a Joint Public Hearing was held on October 21, 2013 for a CUP request to 
allow a similar facility operated by the same company at 2752 Sunrise Blvd.  The proposal 
will result in a reuse of an existing building directly adjacent to an existing shopping center, 
which was most recently used as a restaurant. At the regular meeting of the Planning and 
Zoning Commission on October 21, 2013, the Commission recommended approval of the 
CUP.  The City Council First Reading is scheduled for November 11, 2013 and the Second 
Reading is scheduled for November 25, 2013. 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 Zoning Land Use 

North General Business Retail 
(GB) 

Future H.E.B 

South General Business Retail 
(GB) & Office and 
Professional (OP) 

Detention Reserve 
YMCA 

East General Business Retail 
(GB) 

Firestone, 
Wells Fargo 

West General Business Retail 
(GB) 

Discount Tire, 
First Presbyterian Church 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE (UDC):  The subject 
property is currently undeveloped and is zoned General Business Retail (GB) District.  The 
property includes approximately 1.08 acres and meets the minimum lot size for the GB 
zoning district.  The property will be required to meet all current requirements of the Unified 
Development Code for the proposed use.  The purpose of the GB zoning district is to 
permit an extensive variety of commercial uses, including retail trade, personal and 
business service establishments, offices and commercial recreational uses of limited 
scope.  These types of commercial uses are conducted wholly within an enclosed building 
but may incidentally display merchandise wholly under a permanent part of the main 
business structure, such as a marquee. 
 
General Regulations GB Zoning District Existing Site 

Minimum Lot Size 22,500 sq. ft. 47,081 sq. ft. 

Minimum Lot Width 150 ft. 154.22 ft. 

Minimum Lot Depth 125 ft. 197.71 ft. 

Minimum Front 
Setback 

25 ft. ~ 55 ft.*  

Minimum Side Setback 10 ft. ~94 ft/ west property 
line and ~10 ft./east 
property line *  

Minimum Rear Setback 25 ft. ~72 ft.* 

* per the attached site plan 
JPH 11-18-13 
CUP 2013-10 

Page 2 
 



 
 

SITE HISTORY:     The subject property was annexed into the City of Pearland in 1960 
and is currently undeveloped.  The property has been zoned GB since the adoption of 
zoning within the City of Pearland. 
 
PLATTING STATUS: The approximately 1.08 acre site was originally included in a 4.86 
acre lot which was platted as Block 1, Lot 1 of the CVS Sherwood Subdivision, and 
received final plat approval by the Planning and Zoning Commission on May 19, 2004.  
The property was re-platted into one lot; Lot 1, Block 1, CVS Sherwood Subdivision, and 
was approved on February 23, 2007.  Mutual access to all lots within the CVS Sherwood 
Subdivision and adjacent property has been granted via existing driveways along 
Broadway Street and Cruise Lane. 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The site is located within the 
Retail, Offices and Services Future Land Use Designation.  The Comprehensive Plan 
indicates that appropriate corresponding zoning districts include Office and Professional 
(OP), Neighborhood Services (NS) and General Business Retail District (GB).  The subject 
site is located within the GB zoning district and therefore the proposed use is consistent 
with the Comprehensive Plan with approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property has 
frontage on Y.M.C.A Drive to the west; a minor collector, with a minimum required right-of-
way dedication of 60 feet; Cruise Lane to the south; a minor collector, with a minimum 
right-of-way dedication of 60 feet; and Broadway Street to the north; a major thoroughfare, 
with a minimum required right-of-way dedication of 120 feet.  Right-of-way dedication, per 
the Thoroughfare Plan, has been met for the development of the subject property. 
 
AVAILABILITY OF UTILITIES:  The subject parcel has access to public water and public 
sewer.  The applicant is responsible for extending lines onto the subject property, if 
necessary. 
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT:  The subject property is currently 
undeveloped and is surrounded by nonresidential developments (See above Surrounding 
Zoning and Land Uses Chart), with the exception of the property to the north, which is 
currently under construction for a future H.E.B; a supermarket chain.  It is not anticipated 
that adjacent commercial and undeveloped properties will be negatively impacted.  The 
property directly to the south of the site is platted as a Detention Reserve within the CVS 
Sherwood Subdivision and was designed to accommodate the subject property.  The 
proposed use of the site as a 24-hr Emergency Care Clinic is compatible with the existing 
surrounding uses, and the immediate area is commonly zoned.  A Traffic Impact Analysis 
(TIA) is required prior to the issuance of a building or site work permit to assess the effects 
of the proposed development’s traffic on the existing traffic network and to determine if any 
improvements are necessary to accommodate the development.  
  
 
 

JPH 11-18-13 
CUP 2013-10 

Page 3 
 



 
 

ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  A Pre-Development Meeting was held with the applicant on 
September 4, 2013.  This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development Review 
Committee and there were no additional comments from other departments at the time of 
this report. 
 
PUBLIC NOTIFICATION:  Public notices, comment forms, and a vicinity map were mailed 
to the applicant as well as property owners within 200 feet of the subject property under 
consideration for the Conditional Use Permit on November 4, 2013.  There are six (6) 
property owners within 200 feet of the site.  A legal notice of public hearing was published 
in the local newspaper on October 31, 2013 and a notification sign was placed on the 
property by the applicant on November 8, 2013.  
    
OPPOSITION TO OR SUPPORT OF PROPOSED REQUEST:  Staff has not received any 
comments either in opposition to or in support of the proposed Conditional Use Permit 
request at the time of this report.  However, staff has received two (2) phone calls from 
nearby citizens who expressed neither support of nor opposition to the proposal. 
 
CRITERIA FOR APPROVAL:  When considering an application for a Conditional Use 
Permit, the Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council shall evaluate the impact of 
the proposed use on and its compatibility with surrounding properties and residential areas 
to ensure the appropriateness of the use at the particular location, and shall consider the 
extent to which: 

(1) The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies 
embodied in the adopted Comprehensive Plan; 

(2) The proposed use is consistent with the general purpose and intent of the 
applicable zoning district regulations; 

(3) The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and 
integrity of adjacent developments and neighborhoods, and includes 
improvements either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate 
development related adverse impacts, such as traffic, noise, odors, visual 
nuisances, drainage or other similar adverse effects to adjacent 
development and neighborhoods; 

(4) The proposed use does not generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic which 
will be hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the 
neighborhood; 

(5) The proposed use incorporates roadway adjustments, traffic control 
devices or mechanisms, and access restrictions to control traffic flow or 
divert traffic as may be needed to reduce or eliminate development 
generated traffic on neighborhood streets; 

(6) The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, 
including visual impacts, of the proposed conditional use on adjacent 
properties; and 

JPH 11-18-13 
CUP 2013-10 

Page 4 
 



 
 

(7) The proposed use meets the standards for the zoning district, or to the 
extent variations from such standards have been requested, that such 
variations are necessary to render the use compatible with adjoining 
development and the neighborhood. 

 

Conditions:  The City Council may require such modifications in the proposed use and 
attach such conditions to the Conditional Use Permit as the City Council deems necessary 
to mitigate adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit and intent of this 
section.  It should be noted that at this time staff has not identified negative impacts which 
will need to be mitigated as a result of the proposed redevelopment.  However, in order to 
ensure that the site is redeveloped in accordance with the current proposal, staff is 
recommending that the site plan submitted with this application be added to the adopting 
ordinance, if approved by Council, in the form of a condition of approval.  Should City 
Council identify impacts which it feels should be mitigated, additional conditions and 
modifications may be placed on the approval of the Conditional Use Permit. 
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Conditional Use Permit 
(CUP 2013-10) to allow the operation of an Emergency Care Clinic within the General 
Business Retail (GB) zoning district for the following reasons and subject to the following 
condition: 

 
1. It is not anticipated that the proposed use will have any significant negative impacts 

on surrounding properties or developments. 
 

2. The proposed request will conform to the Unified Development Code and 
Comprehensive Plan’s Future Land Use Map, with approval of the Conditional Use 
Permit (CUP). 
 

3. The proposed request is in conformance with the criteria for approval of a CUP, as 
listed above and in the UDC. 
 

Recommended Conditions: 
 

1. The site shall be developed in accordance with the site plan, as submitted by the 
applicant, and all applicable City requirements. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

• Vicinity and Zoning  Map 
• Property Ownership Map 
• Property Owner Notification List 
• Future Land Use Plan 
• Aerial Photograph 
• Applicant Packet 
• Related Documents 

JPH 11-18-13 
CUP 2013-10 

Page 5 
 



Vicinity and Zoning Map
CUP 2013-10
2906 Broadway St.

GB

OP

MF

R-2

PUDR-3

BROADWAY ST

CRUISE LN

PEARLA
ND PKWY

YMCA DR

STRATFORD ST

WE
ST

MI
NIS

TE
R R

D

CASTLE CT

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Abutter Map
CUP 2013-10
2906 Broadway St.

BROADWAY ST

PEARLA
ND PKWY

CRUISE LN

STRATFORD ST

WESTM
INISTER DR

YMCA DR

WE
ST

MI
NIS

TE
R R

D

AL
EX

AN
DE

R L
N

CHURCHILL
 ST

SAXTON CT

¯0 190 38095 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



CUP 2013-10
2906 Broadway St.

NAME ADDRESS CITY STATE ZIP
HALLE PROPERTIES LLC 20255 N SCOTTSDALE RD SCOTTSDALE AZ 85255
SOUTH TRUST BANK PO BOX 2609 CARLSBAD CA 92018
SOUTH TRUST BANK 106 YORK RD JENKINTOWN PA 19046
CVS PHARMACY 1 CVS DR WOONSOCKET RI 02895
CVS PEARLAND PARKWAY LP 1600 LOUISIANA ST HOUSTON TX 77002
H.E.B. GROCERY COMPANY P.O. BOX 839999 SAN ANTONIO TX 78283
GREG MCGAHEY 8080 PARK LANE, SUITE 800 DALLAS TX 75231



FLUP Map
CUP 2013-10
2906 Broadway St.

Retail, Offices and Services

Public / Semi-Public

High Density Residential

Medium Density Residential

BROADWAY ST

CRUISE LN

PEARLA
ND PKWY

STRATFORD ST

WE
ST

MI
NIS

TE
R R

D

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
CUP 2013-10
2906 Broadway St.

BROADWAY ST

CRUISE LN

PEARLA
ND PKWY

YMCA DR

STRATFORD ST

WE
ST

MI
NIS

TE
R R

D

CASTLE CT

¯0 125 25062.5 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.





























P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

B 
 
 

 



AGENDA - JOINT PUBLIC HEARING OF THE CITY COUNCIL AND THE 
PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION OF THE CITY OF PEARLAND, 
TEXAS, TO BE HELD NOVEMBER 18, 2013, AT 6:30 P.M., IN THE 
COUNCIL CHAMBERS, CITY HALL, 3519 LIBERTY DRIVE, PEARLAND, 
TEXAS 
 

I. CALL TO ORDER 
 

II. PURPOSE OF HEARING 
 
UDC Amendment T-16 
 
Consider proposed amendments to the Unified Development Code. 

 
 

III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY 
 

A. STAFF REPORT 
B. APPLICANT PRESENTATION 

 
IV. PERSONS WISHING TO SPEAK FOR OR AGAINST THE PROPOSED 

REQUEST 
 
V. COUNCIL/PLANNING COMMISSION/STAFF DISCUSSION 
 
VI. ADJOURNMENT 
 
This site is accessible to disabled individuals.  For special assistance, 
please call Young Lorfing, City Secretary, at 281-652-1655 prior to the 
meeting so that appropriate arrangements can be made. 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The City’s Unified Development Code, initially adopted in February 2006, is 
reviewed annually.  This review is based on input over the past year from citizens, 
developers, City Council, the Planning and Zoning Commission, board members, 
and city staff.  Based on this input, Planning staff creates a list of proposed 
amendments to the Unified Development Code.  This year’s amendments, if 
approved, would result in the 16th amendment to the Unified Development Code.   

 
As the Unified Development Code is the City of Pearland’s local zoning ordinance, 
state law and city charter require a Joint Public Hearing with the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council, followed by two readings of the ordinance by 
the City Council to approve any amendments.  
 

 
AGENDA OF: November 18, 2013 ITEM NO.:    
 
DATE SUBMITTED: November 5, 2013        DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 
 
PREPARED BY: Ian Clowes and  PRESENTOR:  Harold Ellis 
                               Harold Ellis 
REVIEWED BY:   Mike Hodge                      REVIEW DATE: November 11, 2013 
 
 
SUBJECT:  Unified Development Code Updates (T-16) 

 
EXHIBITS:  1) First UDC T-16 Amendment Joint Workshop Agenda Request 
                    2) Second UDC T-16 Amendment Joint Workshop Agenda Request 
                    3) Third UDC T-16 Amendment Joint Workshop Agenda Request 
                     
 
EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
 
To be completed by Department: 
          Finance     Legal        Ordinance    Resolution 

1 | P a g e  
 



As in the past, this year’s amendment process began with a series of workshops 
with the Commission.   Workshops were conducted on July 15, August 5 and 
August 19, 2013, to discuss the proposed amendments. The Commission then 
presented their final list of recommended changes to the City Council in the form of 
two Joint Workshop’s, on September 16, and October 7, 2013. A third and final joint 
workshop was held on November 4, 2013 to discuss one additional amendment to 
the Unified Development Code that was not discussed at prior workshops.    

 
Staff began the workshop process with a total of seventeen (17) proposed 
amendments.  After the first Joint Workshop on September 16, there were four (4) 
originally proposed amendments which have been removed from this year’s annual 
Unified Development Code update list.  Three items, which pertain to electrical utility 
requirements, human sign requirements, and Cluster Development Plans need 
additional research and will be discussed at the next update of the UDC.  The fourth 
item, which pertains to wine bars, will continue to be regulated by the Texas 
Alcoholic Beverage Commission and County regulations. With these four (4) items 
removed, and one additional item added, which pertains to the Garden/O’Day Mixed 
Use District, there are now a total of fourteen (14) amendments as part of this 
annual update.  
 
From these workshops, the Commission has recommended that staff amend the 
UDC as summarized in this report.  Detailed information pertaining to these 
changes, as well as draft proposed redline changes are contained in the attached 
agenda requests provided for the prior workshops discussed in this report. 

 
 
Summary of proposed amendments: 
  

1. Buffering along Thoroughfares: 

Section of be amended - Screening 4.2.4.1 (c) (1) 

Proposed amendment: 

This is a clarification to ensure that when a landscape reserve is shown to be 
located between a subdivision and a thoroughfare, a masonry wall is required as 
opposed to wood fencing, unless screening alternatives are proposed.  
Additionally, this amendment adds language that establishes that this 
requirement is only applicable if rear or side yards of residential lots are adjacent 
to and within 200’ of a major or secondary thoroughfare.  

 
2. Clarification of the definition of Banner Signs: 

Sections to be amended – Temporary Signs 4.2.5.5 (c) (Page 4-70) and 
General Definitions 5.1.1.1 (a) (370) 

Proposed amendment: 

2 | P a g e  
 



This amendment adds further clarification to differentiate Banner Signs from 
Temporary Signs.   

3. Clarification on Temporary Signs as they relate to Special and Off 
Premise Events: 

Sections to be amended – On Premise Ground Signs 4.2.5.3 (b) (12) (Page 
4-67) and Temporary Signs 4.2.5.5 (d) (3) (Page 4-71). 

Proposed amendment: 

This amendment adds the phrase Temporary Sign to the section regarding 
Special Events Sign and Off Premise Special Event Signs to clarify the type of 
sign as it is defined in the definition section of the Unified Development Code: 

 
4. Combine Check Cashing use with Pawn Shop/Title Loan use and 

amend the definition accordingly: 

Section to be amended - Land Use Matrix 2.5.2.1 (a) (Page 2-184 and 2-142). 

Proposed amendment: 

Staff feels that these uses are similar in nature and therefore should be 
combined and allowed/disallowed in the same zoning districts.  

5. Expand the Stable, Commercial use to allow riding schools: 

Section to be amended – Land Use Matrix 2.5.2.1 (a) (Page 2-112) 

Proposed amendment: 

Currently this type of facility does not fit well into any existing category. Adding 
this use to the commercial stable category provides more clarity for the staff and 
potential applicant as to where this use is permitted. 
 

6. Allow the self-service carwash use as part of primary use: 

Sections to be amended – Land Use Matrix 2.5.2.1 and Corridor Overlay 

District 2.4.5.1 (d) (4) 

Proposed amendment: 

We have had a number of Conditional Use Permit cases recently that have been 
for self-service drive- thru carwashes that were secondary to a permitted primary 
use on the same lot in the General Business zone.  If requirements are added to 
the Unified Development Code which address any potentially negative impacts, 

3 | P a g e  
 



which are also proposed as part of this amendment the use may be able to be 
permitted by right, thus eliminating the Conditional Use Permit process for this 
use.   

7. Adding a CUP process for new and used car sales:  

Section to be amended – Land Use Matrix 2.5.2.1 

Proposed amendment: 

Requiring a CUP for proposed new and used auto sales will allow the City 
Council to look at each request and determine if the site is best suited for the 
proposed use.  Additionally, the proposed change will allow Council to determine 
what, if any, improvements need to be completed prior to issuance of a 
Certificate of Occupancy.   

8. Require a CUP for the operation of Bail Bonds offices:   

Section to be amended – Land Use Matrix 2.5.2.1 

Proposed amendment: 

The amendment proposes a CUP in all zones in order to allow P&Z and City 
Council to determine whether this particular, potentially sensitive use, should be 
permitted at a specific requested location. 

      9.  Proposed Amendments to allowable uses in the Spectrum S4 and  
          S5 zoning districts: 
 
         Section to be amended – Land Use Matrix 2.5.2.1  

 
Proposed amendment: 
 
Staff believes that the proposed revision to the land use matrix will facilitate the 
location of additional uses in the area.  The development guidelines in the SP4 
and SP5 zoning districts will ensure that the intent of the Comprehensive Plan is 
maintained, specifically – “mixture of architectural and design characteristics that 
are aesthetically pleasing”. 

 

 

 

 

4 | P a g e  
 



    10. Fencing along Corridor Overlay District (COD), Screening and Fence     
         Type: 

 
Section to be amended - Corridor Overlay District 2.4.5.1 (i) (3) and 2.4.5.1  

(i) (5)   

Proposed amendments: 

The amendment will add clarifying language with regard to front yard fence 
height requirements, and allow additional fencing and landscaping options for 
repairing or replacing existing fences. 

 

    11. Fencing along Corridor Overlay District (COD), Definition:  
 

Section to be amended - General Definitions 5.1.1.1 (a)  
            
           Proposed amendment: 

As we are proposing amendments which pertain to subdivision and wood rail 
fences (above), we believe definitions for these types of fences should be added 
for clarification purposes. 
 

12. Limit asphalt parking as an allowable paving material: 
 

Section to be amended - Off-Street Parking Lot Construction - Subbase 
4.2.1.4, Off-Street Parking Lot Construction – Base Course 4.2.1.5, and Off-
Street Parking Lot Construction – All-Weather Surface 4.2.1.6 
  
Proposed amendment: 
 
Based on recent applications for asphalt parking lots, which are currently allowed 
in the Unified Development Code, staff is recommending that the City limit 
asphalt as an allowable material for paving.   

 
13. Prohibit Temporary Buildings for permanent Commercial Use: 

Sections to be amended - General Definitions 5.1.1.1 (a) and Corridor 
Overlay Zoning District 2.4.5.1 (n) 

Proposed amendment: 

The purpose of this proposed amendment is to prevent the use of temporary 
buildings being located on commercial property for permanent use.   

 

5 | P a g e  
 



    14.  Adding additional uses, by way of Conditional Use Permit, in the  
Garden/O’Day Mixed Use District (G/O-MU): 
 
Section to be amended – Industrial Use CUP- 2.4.3.3 (i) 

Proposed amendment: 

Currently in the G/O-MU zoning district, properties which were formerly zoned 
industrial (either M-1 or M-2), are eligible to be granted a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow uses not permitted in the existing zone, but were permitted either by right 
or with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit in the property’s former zone.  
This amendment proposes to expand upon this section of the UDC and permit 
properties formerly zoned other non-residential and residential zoning districts 
the opportunity to request a CUP to allow uses permitted in the property’s former 
zone, or a predetermined base zoning district for properties formerly zoned 
residential but used for commercial purposes. 

 
Recommended action: 
 
Staff recommends approval of the proposed UDC T-16 amendments.   
 

6 | P a g e  
 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The City’s Unified Development Code, initially adopted in February 2006, is 
reviewed annually.  This review is based on input over the past year from citizens, 
developers, City Council, the Planning and Zoning Commission, board members, 
and city staff.  Based on this input, Planning staff creates a list of proposed 
amendments to the Unified Development Code.  This year’s amendments, if 
approved, would result in the 16th amendment to the Unified Development Code.   

 
As the Unified Development Code is the City of Pearland’s local zoning ordinance, 
state law and city charter require a Joint Public Hearing with the Planning and 
Zoning Commission and City Council, followed by two readings of the ordinance by 
the City Council to approve any amendments. 
 
In the City of Pearland, City Council has directed that the Planning and Zoning 
Commission review these amendments in detail and make a recommendation at 
the joint workshop.  Therefore, as in the past, this year’s amendment process 

 
AGENDA OF: September 16, 2013 ITEM NO.:    
 
DATE SUBMITTED: August 22, 2013        DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 
 
PREPARED BY: Ian Clowes and  PRESENTOR:  Harold Ellis 
                               Harold Ellis 
REVIEWED BY:                                            REVIEW DATE:  
 
 
SUBJECT:  Annual Unified Development Code Updates (T-16) 

 
EXHIBITS:  Proposed Areas of Amendments and Recommended Language 
                     
 
EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
 
To be completed by Department: 
          Finance     Legal        Ordinance    Resolution 

1 | P a g e  
 



began with a series of workshops with the Commission.   Workshops were 
conducted on July 15, August 5 and August 19, 2013, to discuss the proposed 
amendments.  From these workshops, the Commission has recommended that 
staff amend the UDC as detailed in this report. 

 
This year and for the purposes of this workshop, there are a total of sixteen (16) 
proposed amendments.  As has been done in the past, we have separated the 
proposed amendments into three (3) separate categories: 1) Clarification on existing 
UDC language, which includes amendments 1-3; 2) Land Use Matrix changes, 
which includes amendments 4-9; and General Unified Development Code changes, 
which includes amendments 10-16.   
 
Additions to the Unified Development Code are shown in red font and deletions are 
shown in red strikeout font.  Current code language is Italicized. 

 
 
Exhibit 1 Proposed Areas of Amendments and Recommended Language: 
 
Clarification on existing UDC language 
 

1. Clarification of buffering along Thoroughfares: 

Section of be amended - Screening 4.2.4.1 (c) (1) 

Proposed amendment: 

This is a clarification to ensure that when a landscape reserve is shown to be 
located between a subdivision and a thoroughfare, a masonry wall is required as 
opposed to wood fencing, unless screening alternatives as discussed later in this 
report are proposed. 

This clarification will ensure that proposed subdivisions comply with all screening 
requirements when abutting/visible from a thoroughfare. 

 Amendment: 

4.2.4.1 (c) (1) 

(c) Residential Screening Along Major and Secondary Thoroughfares (Applies to 
the City & ETJ). 

(1) Requirement Criteria:  Where residential subdivisions are platted so that the 
rear or side yards of single-family or two-family residential lots are adjacent to a 
major or secondary thoroughfare roadway as described in Chapter 3, or are 
separated from such thoroughfare by an alley, landscape or open space 
area/detention facility, or back up to such thoroughfare, the developer shall 
provide, at its sole expense, a minimum six-foot tall masonry screening wall 
(also see Subsection (2) below), or some other alternative form of screening, if 
approved by the Planning Director, according to the following alternatives and 
standards.  All screening shall be adjacent to the right-of-way or property line 

2 | P a g e  
 



and fully located on the private lot(s), including columns and decorative 
features.  All forms of screening shall conform to the requirements of City 
ordinances and policies that govern sight distance for traffic safety. 

 Screening Alternatives:  Screening shall be provided in accordance with, and 
shall be constructed to, standards and criteria as set forth in the City’s EDCM.  
An alternative form of screening, in lieu of the masonry wall, may be approved 
by Planning Director and the City Engineer with the Preliminary Subdivision 
Plat or Preliminary Development Plat application.  Alternatives that may 
considered include: 

a. A living/landscaped screen in conjunction with decorative metal (e.g., 
wrought iron) fence sections with masonry columns; 

b. A combination of berms and living/landscaped screening; 
c. A combination of berms, decorative masonry walls and living/landscaped 

screening, either with or without a decorative metal or “WoodCrete” type 
of fence with masonry columns;  or 

d. Some other creative screening alternative may be approved if it meets the 
spirit and intent of this Section, if it is demonstrated to be long-lasting and 
generally maintenance-free, and if the Planning Director and City 
Engineer find it to be in the public interest to approve the alternative 
screening device. 

 
            Basis for Recommendation 
            

This language clarification will avoid confusion in the interpretation of the 
requirement.  The Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with this 
clarification.   

            
 

2. Clarification of the definition of Banner Signs: 

Section to be amended – Temporary Signs 4.2.5.5 (c) (Page 4-70) and 
Definitions 5.1.1.1 (a) (370) 

Proposed amendment: 

Adding further clarification to differentiate Banner Signs from Temporary Signs.   

Staff has seen an influx of requests to place banner like signs either on poles, 
vehicles, or other structures in order to advertise a specific business or event.  
Some of these uses may be permitted under the temporary sign definition but 
should not be considered under the banner sign definition.   

Amendment: 

5.1.1.1 (a) (370) 

3 | P a g e  
 



(c) Banner Defined.  A banner is hereby defined to be a temporary sign as that 
term is defined Chapter 5 of this UDC that is designed to be attached or 
installed with rope, wire, or other temporary means to a portion of the on 
premise building façade, so as to allow ease of installation and removal. 

 

          Basis for Recommendation: 
 

This amendment will help clarify the definition of a banner as a temporary sign 
affixed to the façade of an on premise business and add an official definition of a 
Banner Sign to Chapter 5. The Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with 
this clarification.   

 

3. Clarification on Temporary Signs as they relate to Special and Off 
Premise Events: 

Section to be amended – On Premise Ground Signs 4.2.5.3 (b) (12) (Page 4-
67) and  Temporary Signs 4.2.5.5 (d) (3) (Page 4-71). 

Proposed amendment: 

Add the phrase Temporary Sign to the section regarding Special Events Sign 
and Off Premise Special Event Signs to clarify the type of sign as it is defined in 
the definition section of the Unified Development Code: 

For these types of signs, we need to clarify that the permitted signs are different 
than Portable Signs or Marquee Signs. 

The Unified Development Code currently has a definition for Temporary Sign but 
this type of sign is not appropriately referenced in the sign code. 

Amendment: 

4.2.5.3 (b) (12) 

(12) Special Events Sign: Temporary Signs advertising a special event sponsored 
by a non-profit organization, charitable group, or civic club and placed on real 
property where said event is to take place shall be allowed subject to the 
following conditions: 

 a. The signs may not be displayed more than fourteen (14) days before, or 
five (5) days after, the event. 

 b. The sign may not exceed six feet (6’) in height or thirty-two square feet 
(32 ft2) in area per sign face. 

 c. Only one such sign is allowed per street frontage, with a maximum of 
three per property. 

4 | P a g e  
 



d. Portable Signs as defined in section 5.1.1.1 (a) (389) are not considered 
Temporary Signs and will not be permitted.  

 
4.2.5.5 (d) (3) 

  
(3) Off-premise special events signs: Temporary Signs advertising a special event 

sponsored by a non-profit organization, charitable group, or civic club may be 
placed off-premises of where said event is to take place shall be allowed 
subject to the following conditions: 

 a. The signs may not be displayed more than fourteen (14) days before, or 
five (5) days after, the event. 

 b. No more than ten signs not exceeding six feet (6’) in height or thirty-two 
square feet (32 ft2) in area per sign face are allowed within the City’s 
limits, limited to one per street frontage.  These signs shall be exempt 
from sign permit fees. 

 c. There is no quantity limit on signs not exceeding three and a half feet 
(3.5’) in height or five square feet (5 ft2) in area per sign face, except only 
one is allowed per lot. 

d. Portable Signs as defined in section 5.1.1.1 (a) (389) are not considered 
Temporary Signs and will not be permitted.  

 
Basis for Recommendation: 
 

This amendment will help to provide clarity and consistency when interpreting 
sign requests.  The Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with this 
clarification.   

 
Land Use Matrix changes 
 

 
4. Combine Check Cashing use with Pawn Shop/Title Loan use and 

amend the definition accordingly: 

Section to be amended - Section proposed to be changed: 2.5.2.1 (a) (Page 2-
184 and 2-142). 

Proposed amendment: 

Staff feels that these uses are similar in nature and thus should be combined and 
allowed/disallowed in the same zoning districts. By calling out the different uses, 
this allows for more clarity when determining the best land use category for an 
applicant’s proposed use.    

Currently, as Check Cashing is a separate land use category from Pawn Shop, 
Payday Loan, and Gold Exchange, the uses are permitted in different areas of 

5 | P a g e  
 



the City.  A Check Cashing business is permitted by right in the Old Townsite 
General Business Zone, General Business, General Commercial, and M-1 and 
M-2 Industrial districts and with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit in the 
BP-288, Neighborhood Service, and S1, S2, and S3 Spectrum zones. 

A Pawn Shop, Payday Loan, and Gold Exchange, is only permitted by right in the 
General Commercial and Light Industrial (M-1) zones.  This proposal, while 
adding Check Cashing to the same category is to continue the use by right in the 
same categories and add it with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit in the 
Old Townsite General Business, BP-288, and General Business zones. 

Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other options for addressing the issue: 

If council prefers to keep the uses separate, that can be done and discussions 
can occur with regards to where Council believes these uses are most 
appropriate in the City. 

Basis for recommendation: 

As Check cashing is considered to be a similar use as Pawn Shop, Gold 
Exchange, and Title Loans use and should be combined.  Additionally, the 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Check Cashing 
Service 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
  

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-
M

U
 

O
T-

R 
O

T-
GB

 

O
T-

M
U

 

RR
N

 

O
P 

BP
-2

88
 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                      C C C      P    C C P P P P 

Description:  An establishment that cashes customers’ checks for a fee. 

Parking:  One space for 200 square feet of gross floor area. 

 
 
 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Pawn Shop, Pay 
Day Loan 

(including Title 
Loans and 

Check Cashing) 
& Gold 

Exchange 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-
M

U
 

O
T-

R 
O

T-
GB

 
O

T-
M

U
 

RR
N

 

O
P 

BP
-

28
8 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                                      C       C    C  P P   
Description:  An establishment that loans money in exchange for personal property pledged by the 
property owner to the business, or that buys such property from its owner for resale. Retail sales 
permitted, including sales of pre-owned items, provided that sales of such pre-owned items comply 
with all applicable law.  This use includes establishments that primarily buy gold from customers, 
and institutions that loan money based on postdated checks and car titles, or cash 
personal/paychecks for a fee. 
Parking: One space per 300 square feet of gross floor area.    

 

6 | P a g e  
 



proposed amendment will give Council the ability to permit the uses in question 
in the General Business zone with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit and 
the proposed change provides additional clarity to the different types of loaning 
agencies.  The Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with the 
amendment.   

 

5. Expand the Stable, Commercial use to allow riding schools: 

Section to be amended - Section to be changed:  2.5.2.1 (a) (Page 2-112) 

Proposed amendment: 

Currently this type of facility does not fit well into any existing category. Adding 
this use to the commercial stable category provides more clarity for the staff and 
potential applicant but also prevents staff from needing to add an additional use 
to the Land Use Matrix. 
 
The proposal also includes adding the amended use in both General Business 
and General Commercial and by Conditional Use Permit in the Garden/O’day 
Mixed Use and Cullen Mixed Use zone.  As the city has grown and matured, staff 
feels that these proposed zones would be a good fit for future facilities of this 
nature. The Conditional Use Permit in the mixed use zones allows for the 
Planning and Zoning and City Council to determine if the proposed site in either 
of those zones would be appropriate. It is not anticipated that the use of a riding 
school will be any more intensive than a commercial stable.   
 
Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Stable/Riding 
Facility, 

Commercial 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-M
U

 

O
T-

R 
O

T-
GB

 

O
T-

M
U

 

RR
N

 

O
P 

BP
-2

88
 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                                C C               P  
 
P P P 

Description:   A facility used for the rental of a stall space or spaces, or for the sale or rental of horses 
or mules.  This also includes horseback riding, training, competition, and lessons. 
Parking:  One space for each 5 horses that can be boarded at the maximum capacity on the property.  

 

7 | P a g e  
 



Other options for addressing the issue: 

There was internal discussion with regards to classifying a riding facility as a 
Private Club, which is an existing use in the City’s Land Use Matrix.  However, as 
we already had a similar use, the Stable, Commercial in the Land Use Matrix, the 
most appropriate fit was to amend that use so as to provide the use with as much 
clarity as possible. 

Basis for recommendation: 

Staff recently received a request to enlarge an existing riding facility. In order to 
do so, the use needed to be formally classified in the Land Use Matrix.  We 
discovered at that time that we did not have a use which addressed the specific 
operation in question.  The Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with the 
amendment. 

 

6. Create a new use for Wine Bars in the Land Use Matrix: 

Section to be amended - Section proposed to be added: 2.5.2.1 (a) (Page 2-
158) 

Proposed amendment: 

Wine bars have become a more popular use in the last couple of years.  In 
general, the majority of requests have been for wine bars where little to no food 
is sold but would not be best classified as a traditional Bar or Tavern, as those 
establishments differ in operation (including types of beverages sold), as well as 
the zoning districts they are permitted in.  Staff feels that a wine bar is a less 
intensive use than a tavern and thus would be appropriate in the General 
Business and General Commercial zone. 

Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential 
Zoning Districts 

Wine Bar 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-
M

U
 

O
T-

R 

O
T-

GB
 

O
T-

M
U

 
RR

N
 

O
P 

BP
-

28
8 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                               C  C    C  C          P P P   
Description:  A facility that derives up to 100% of its revenue from the sale of wine (not beer or 
liquor) for consumption on the premises where the drinks are sold. 
Parking: One space per 300 square feet of gross floor area.    

 

8 | P a g e  
 



Other options for addressing the issue: 

Wine bars could be classified as Tavern, an existing use in the Land Use Matrix.  
However, a Tavern would be more restrictive with regards to where they are 
permitted to locate as they are not currently permitted by right in any zoning 
district in the City. 

Basis for recommendation: 

Staff believes that the Wine Bar use is less intense than a Tavern and would not 
be an intrusive use in the districts in which it is being proposed to be allowed by 
right.  Council will have the ability to review requests where the use is being 
proposed to be allowed with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit.  The 
Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with this request. 

 

7. Allow the self-service carwash use as part of primary use: 

Section to be amended - Section to be changed: 2.5.2.1 and 2.4.5.1 (d) (4) 

Proposed amendment: 

We have had a number of Conditional Use Permit cases recently that have been 
for self-service drive- thru carwashes that were secondary to a permitted primary 
use on the same lot in the General Business zone.  The basis for requiring a 
Conditional Use Permit in the past was to insure that any potentially negative 
impacts were able to be mitigated for, such as unscreened bays facing a 
roadway.  If requirements are added to the Unified Development Code which 
address any potentially negative impacts, the use may be able to be permitted by 
right, thus eliminating the Conditional Use Permit process for this use.   

The Auto Wash - Self Serve will still be listed as a standalone use in the land use 
matrix and would continue to require a Conditional Use Permit in the General 
Business zone if not associated with a permitted primary use.   

Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Gasoline 
Station (With 

or Without 
Auto Wash - 
Self Serve) 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-
M

U
 

O
T-

R 
O

T-
GB

 

O
T-

M
U

 

RR
N

 

O
P 

BP
-2

88
 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                                C      P      P P P P P 
Description:  An establishment where gasoline is sold and dispensed into motor vehicle tanks and 
may have an attached or detached auto wash use. The attached or detached auto wash must be an 
automated wash tunnel and does not include self serve wand style auto washes.   
Parking:  One space per employee plus spaces required to satisfy projected peak parking demand.  

 
9 | P a g e  

 



(4) For any type of use that requires openings in the facade for vehicle entry or 
exit: These openings must not face a public roadway unless adequately 
screened to minimize the visual impact on the roadway. The screening should 
the meet the requirements 2.4.5.1 (i) (b), 2.4.5.1. (2), and 2.4.5.1 (3) (c) (a). 

 

Other options for addressing the issue: 

If Council is more comfortable addressing each carwash associated with a 
permitted primary use on a case-by-case basis, staff can continue processing 
them as such.  If the Council has other conditions which they believe will help 
mitigate any potential negative impacts, those conditions may also be added to 
the Unified Development Code as conditions for allowing the auto-washes by 
right. 

Basis for recommendation: 

With the language above, added to the Corridor Overlay District section of the 
Unified Development Code, that states no bay doors shall be permitted to face 
the thoroughfare without adequate screening, staff believes that necessity for a 
Conditional Use Permit for an auto-wash, self-serve, is alleviated.  The Planning 
and Zoning Commission concurred with this amendment. 

 

8. Separate new and used car sales in the land use matrix:  

Section to be amended - Section to be changed: 2.5.2.1 

Proposed amendment: 

The proposal is to separate new and used car sales and require used car sales 
to obtain a Conditional Use Permit prior to obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy.  
This will allow the City Council to look at each site and determine what, if any, 
improvements need to be completed prior to issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy.  

Recently we have had a number of used car lots open up throughout the city.  
The majority of these have opened on sites that do not currently comply with the 
Unified Development Code and no site improvements are triggered or 
undertaken.  This has led to further deterioration of the sites as the intensity of 
the used car sales use exceeds that of previous uses on these sites. 

 

 

 

10 | P a g e  
 



Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Other options for addressing the issue: 

The land use matrix does not currently separate new and used car sales and the 
existing land use designations can remain the same if we do not proceed with 
this amendment.   

Basis for recommendation: 

Staff believes we will continue to have requests to convert structures not 
designed for used car sales into those types of facilities without giving the City 
Council the ability to review these requests and request site improvements which 
may make the site better suited for the proposed use.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission concurs with this amendment. 

 

     9. Require a CUP for the operation of Bail Bonds offices:   

Section to be amended - Section to be changed: 2.5.2.1 

 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Auto 
Sales/Dealer 

(New - In 
Building, (Auto 
Servicing and 

Used Auto 
Sales as 

accessory uses 
only) 

Combined auto 
lease 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-
M

U
 

O
T-

R 
O

T-
GB

 

O
T-

M
U

 

RR
N

 

O
P 

BP
-2

88
 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                                      C           P P P P 
Description:  A paved area for the display for sale of new motorized and non-motorized vehicles 
accompanied by an on-site office with staffing during normal business hours.  

Parking:  One space per 1500 square feet of open sales lot and enclosed floor area devoted to the 
sale and display. 

 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Auto 
Sales/Dealer 
Used - (Auto 
Servicing as 

accessory uses 
only) 

 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-
M

U
 

O
T-

R 
O

T-
GB

 

O
T-

M
U

 

RR
N

 

O
P 

BP
-2

88
 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                                      C           
 

C C C C 
Description:  A paved area for the display for sale of used motorized vehicles accompanied by an on-
site office with staffing during normal business hours.  
Parking:  One space per 1500 square feet of open sales lot and enclosed floor area devoted to the 
sale and display. 

 

11 | P a g e  
 



Proposed amendment: 

The proposal calls for a CUP in all zones in order to allow P&Z and City Council 
to determine whether this particular, potentially sensitive use, should be 
permitted in a specific location.  

With the relocation of the Police Department to the Public Safety Building, there 
is potential for an influx of bail bonds offices in the Cullen/Broadway corridor.  
Currently these operations are permitted by right in the BP-288, General 
Business and General Commercial zones.   

Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Other options for addressing the issue: 

As previously mentioned, the land use matrix does not currently permit the use 
by right in the BP-288, General Business, and General Commercial zones.  If 
Council is uncomfortable requiring a Conditional Use Permit in all zones, Council 
may which to continue to allow the use in the General Commercial zone, but still 
require a Conditional Use Permit in the less intense commercial zones, such as 
General Business and BP-288. 

Basis for recommendation: 

As discussed above, Staff has seen an increase in activity with regards to 
inquiries about where this particular use is permitted.  We believe that by 
addressing the issue now, we may be able to make sure this use is not permitted 
in an area where it may not be best suited. 

 

 

 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Office, Parole-
Probation, Bail 

Bonds 
 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-
M

U
 

O
T-

R 
O

T-
GB

 

O
T-

M
U

 

RR
N

 

O
P 

BP
-2

88
 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                      C C C C C C C   
 

C C C C 
P 
C C 

P 
C 

P 
C C   

Description:  An office for conducting the supervision of recently paroled convicts for the purpose 
of successful integration into society.  This use includes entities that issue bail bonds.  
Parking:  One space for each 300 square feet of gross floor area 

 

12 | P a g e  
 



General Unified Development Code changes 

  
  10. Human Signs:  

 
Section to be amended - Section to be changed/added: General Exceptions 
4.2.5.9 (b) (7) and Temporary Signs 4.2.5.5 (d) (4)  
 
Proposed amendment: 
 
Amend the section of the sign code that discusses human signs by adding 
moderate restrictions on how human signs can be displayed throughout the city.    
 
This is in response to a substantial increase in the use of human signs 
throughout the city including costumed characters. The concerns discussed at 
the past workshop included traffic safety concerns, including hazards such as 
driver distraction caused by the signs, as well as the signs being a general visual 
nuisance.   
 
The City of Webster adopted a human sign code this past May.  The majority of 
the City of Pearland proposed language was taken from The City of Webster’s 
ordinance with a few additional restrictions. Webster does not regulate the size or 
the movements of such signs.  We are proposing both size restrictions and 
movement restrictions in order to limit possible roadway distractions.  We also 
are limiting the location and the number per lot.  Webster allows one sign per 
business and must be displayed at the business.  We are proposing to permit 
only one human sign per individual lot per month and signs must not be located 
on any paved area of a public or private street, public medians or public swale.  
This will prevent a large shopping center located on one individual lot from 
having multiple human signs out in the ROW at the same time. 
 
 
Amendment: 
 
Section 4.2.5.9 (b) (7) 
 
Remove Human Signs from the Exempted Signs Section and move it to the 
temporary signs section (below) 
 

   Section 4.2.5.9 General Exemptions 

(a) Generally.  Notwithstanding any other provision in this UDC to the contrary, the 
following signs shall be exempt from all sign requirements contained in the UDC 
except for location restrictions, unless modified below, and any requirement for the 
sign specifically listed herein. 

 
           (b) Exemptions. 

 
(7) Human Signs.  Signs carried or wholly supported by humans are allowed so 
long as they do not exceed thirty-two square feet (32 ft2) in size. 

13 | P a g e  
 



 
 
Section 4.2.5.5 (d) (4) 
 

      SSeeccttiioonn  44..22..55..55  TTeemmppoorraarryy  SSiiggnnss      
 
(d) Other Temporary Signs.  The following signs shall be allowed, subject to any 

conditions set forth below. 
 

(7)  Human signs are permitted within the city limits. Human signs are 
defined as a person wearing a costume or holding a sign while outside 
for the purpose of advertising a business, product, service, person, event 
or issue. Human signs are not permitted on any paved area of a public 
or private street, public medians or public swale. All human signs are also 
subject to the following: 

a. A permit for up to 10 consecutive days of display per 
month is required.  Only one such permit for one human 
sign will be issued to an individual lot per month. 

b. Sign holders must be standing (not seated) on the 
sidewalk or on private property. The use of podiums, 
chairs, ladders, risers, silts, vehicles, roofs, or any other 
structure or device is prohibited. 

c. The maximum size of any sign being held is six square 
feet. 

d. Signs are not permitted to be shaken, swung, oscillated, 
waved, rotated, twirled or thrown. 

e. No electronic displays of any type including lights, video, 
LED, or reader boards are allowed.  

 
 Other options for addressing the issue: 
 

If necessary, other options may be researched based on Council input and 
discussion at the workshop. 

  
 Basis for recommendation: 
  

This is a proposed amendment which has been discussed in the past with prior 
Unified Development Code amendments.  As this issue has become more 
prevalent in the region as a whole, cities are beginning to regulate how to 
address the issue.  This issue has been discussed in the past by City Council, 
and regulating human signs is supported by the Eyes of Pearland.  The Planning 
and Zoning Commission also concurs with this amendment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

14 | P a g e  
 



    11. Fencing along Corridor Overlay District (COD), Screening and Fence     
         Type: 

 
Section to be amended - Section proposed to be amended: Corridor Overlay 

Zoning District 2.4.5.1 (i) (3) and Section 2.4.5.1 (i) (5)   

Proposed amendments: 

Add clarifying language with regard to front yard fence height requirements, and 
allow additional fencing and landscaping options for repairing or replacing 
existing fences. 

An example of this would be the residential lots which front onto Dixie Farm Rd.  
Since the front yards are located along the roadway, they would not be permitted 
to install privacy fences but would be able to install fences not exceeding 4’ in 
height which are decorative in nature.  This amendment is meant to clarify an 
existing requirement.  

Additionally, new subdivision fences which abut the COD are required to be 
constructed of masonry materials or wood rail fencing for larger lot subdivisions.  
The code is not clear on what developed or vacant single family lots that are not 
part of a subdivision, with an existing subdivision fence, may do when it comes to 
constructing, replacing or repairing fences.  A recent example of this situation is 
occurring along Bailey where as a result of the widening, existing fences need to 
be relocated or rebuilt.  The amendment allows for other types of fencing with 
landscaping. 
 

Amendment: 

2.4.5.1 (i) (3) 

3) Screening Elements Prohibited:  No fence or wall visible from a public street 
shall be:  

a. Greater than eight feet (8') in height unless regulated by section 4.2.4.3 
(a) (2) (b).  

b. Located within any required visibility triangle.  
c. Constructed with any of the following materials: surface painted or coated 

concrete, chain link, concertina wire, barbed wire, corrugated metal, 
fiberglass panels, or wood (unless completely screened with vegetation 
per Section 2.4.5.1 (i) (3) (c) (2) (A) (i), with a 3’ landscape planting area. 
Landscape alternatives may be approved by the Planning Director or 
designee. 

             2.4.5.1 (i) (5)          
5) Residential Subdivision Fences: 

15 | P a g e  
 



a. Residential subdivision fences shall be uniform in style, color, and 
material along the length of the subdivision.   

b. If visible from a street right-of-way, fences shall be constructed of 
masonry materials.    

  (i) For large-lot subdivisions, which are defined as subdivisions 
with average lot sizes of one-half acre or more or single lots not part of a 
platted subdivision, wood rail fencing may be used if it is not more than 
25% opaque. 

  
  (ii) In situations where single family parcels exist and where a 

subdivision fence or wall does not currently exist, wood fencing may be 
used if it is completely screened from view of the roadway by shrubs per 
Section 2.4.5.1 (i) (3) (c) (2) (A) (i), with a 3’ landscape planting area. 
Landscape alternatives may be approved by the Planning Director or 
designee.   

 
           Basis for recommendation: 
           

Staff believes that this amendment will help clarify existing requirements and also 
provide additional fencing options.  Currently a fence abutting a Corridor Overlay 
District would not be permitted to be constructed of wood.  This amendment will 
allow wood as a material as long it is screened with landscaping.  This request 
stems from recent cases where fence permit applicants were unclear on what the 
height requirements were and what screening options were required for different 
types of fencing.  The Planning and Zoning Commission concurs with this 
amendment. 

 
 

    12. Fencing along Corridor Overlay District (COD), Definition’s  
 

Sections to be amended - Sections proposed to be amended: General 
Definitions 5.1.1.1 (a)  

            
           Proposed amendment: 

As we are proposing amendments which pertain to subdivision and wood rail 
fences (above), we believe definitions for these types of fences should be added 
for clarification purposes. 
 
Amendment: 
 
Adding 5.1.1.1 (a) (184) (185) and amending subsequent numbers: 
 
(184) FENCE, SUBDIVISION:  A cohesive fence which is typically built by and at 
the cost of the developer at the time of initial subdivision development. These 
fences surround the development and are also typically maintained by a home 

16 | P a g e  
 



owners association and are often regulated by recorded deed restrictions with 
design requirements.   

 
(185) FENCE, WOOD RAIL: A fence constructed of narrow, or split wood 
timbers, placed between upright supporting posts  and with a maximum opacity 
of 25%. 

 
Basis for recommendation: 

This amendment is in conjunction with the prior amendment and provides 
additional clarification.  The Planning and Zoning Commission concurs with this 
request. 

 

13. Remove or limit asphalt parking as an allowable paving material: 
 

Section to be amended - Section to be amended: Off-Street Parking Lot 
Construction - Subbase 4.2.1.4 and Section 4.2.1.5 Off-Street Parking Lot 
Construction – Base Course, and Section 4.2.1.6 Off-Street Parking Lot 
Construction – All-Weather Surface 
  
Proposed amendment: 
 
 This item was initially discussed with the Commission on July 15th.  Based on   
 recent applications for asphalt parking lots, which are currently allowed in the   
 Unified Development Code, staff is recommending that the City limit or eliminate  
 asphalt as an allowable material for paving.  Not only is asphalt less       
 aesthetically pleasing, it is significantly less durable than concrete.   

 
The Commission initially indicated that they would like to see the material limited 
as well, but was concerned with removing it as an allowed use all together and 
requested staff research further options.   

 
The Engineering Department has researched further options and believes that 
the durability concern will be addressed by adding language to the Unified 
Development Code which requires asphalt, if used, to be constructed with the 
same sub-base as concrete. 

 
           Amendment: 

 
 4.2.1.4 

      (3) Embankment: 
a. Embankment material shall be consistent with the City of Pearland (COP) 

specification section for Bedding, Backfill, and Embankment Material.  
b. Except as otherwise specified, embankment filling shall be constructed in 

successive layers for the full width of the individual parking lot cross section 

17 | P a g e  
 



and in lengths as are best suited to the sprinkling and compaction methods 
utilized. 

c. Layers of embankment may be formed by utilizing equipment which will 
spread the material as it is dumped, or they may be formed by being spread 
by blading or other acceptable methods from piles or windrows dumped from 
excavating or hauling equipment in amounts that provide even distribution. 

d. Each layer of embankment fill shall be uniform as to material, density and 
moisture content before beginning compaction. Where layers of unlike 
materials abut each other, each layer shall be feather-edged for at least 100 
feet or the material shall be so mixed as to prevent abrupt changes in the soil. 
No material placed in the embankment by dumping in a pile or windrow shall 
be incorporated in a layer in that position, but all piles or windrows shall be 
moved by blading or similar methods. 

e. Compaction of embankments shall be obtained by the method described as 
“ordinary compaction”. 

 
(4) Ordinary Compaction: When the ordinary compaction method is specified, the 

following shall apply. “Depth” means the depth of material achieved upon 
compaction until there is no evidence of further compaction, in accordance with 
the provisions governing “rolling”.  Prior to and in conjunction with the rolling 
operation, each layer shall be compacted to a minimum of 95% maximum dry 
density within ±3% of the optimum, unless otherwise specified by the Design 
Engineer and shall be kept leveled with suitable equipment to ensure uniform 
compaction over the entire layer. 

(5) All parking lot pavements shall consist of a minimum 6 inch of Class A, Lime 
Treated Subgrade compacted to a minimum of 95% maximum dry density 
within ±3% of the optimum. 

 
 4.2.1.5 
 

Base Course for Parking Areas. 
(1) Generally: For off-street parking lot pavements, flexible base shall consist of a 

foundation course composed of crushed stone or other stone materials as 
specified in the COP specification section for base course for pavement and in 
conformity with the typical sections shown on plans or grades established by 
the Design Engineer.  Concrete parking lots do not require base course. 

(2) Material: One of the following materials; crushed stone, recycled crushed 
concrete base, cement-stabilized crushed stone, cement-stabilized bank-run 
gravel, recycled crushed stone and hot mixed asphalt base,  can be used as 
specified in the COP specification section for Base Course for Pavement. The 
material shall be a graded material that has sufficient fine material to bind the 
base. The material sources shall be subject to approval by the City Engineer. 

(3) Construction Methods: 
a. Immediately before placing the base material, the subgrade shall be 

checked as to conformity with dry density, moisture content, grade and 
section. 

18 | P a g e  
 



b. Materials deposited upon the subgrade shall be spread and shaped the 
same day unless otherwise approved by the City Engineer in writing. If 
inclement weather or other unforeseen circumstances render impractical 
the spreading of the material during the first 24-hour period, the material 
shall be scarified and spread in a manner subject to approval by the City 
Engineer. The material will be sprinkled, if directed, and will then be 
bladed, dragged and shaped to conform to typical sections as shown on 
the plans. All areas and “nests” of segregated coarse or fine material shall 
be corrected or removed and replaced with well-graded material, as 
directed by the City Engineer. If additional binder is considered desirable 
or necessary after the material is spread and shaped, it shall be furnished 
and applied in an amount subject to approval by the City Engineer. The 
binder material shall be spread by harrowing, brooming or other approved 
methods. 

c. The base course shall be compacted in accordance to COP specification 
section for Base Course for Pavement with a minimum of 95% dry density 
with moisture content within ±3% of the optimum, unless otherwise 
specified by the Design Engineer.  

 
 4.2.1.6 
 

All-Weather Surface for Parking Areas.  
(1) Portland Cement Concrete: This off-street parking lot surface shall consist of a 

pavement of Portland cement concrete, with or without monolithic curbs, 
constructed as specified in this section on the prepared subgrade or other base 
course in conformity with the thickness and typical cross sections shown on 
plans and to the lines and grades established subject to approval by the City 
Engineer. Alternative pavement materials may be used for parking surfaces 
upon approval of the Building Official and the City Engineer.  The paving 
material or concrete shall be considered of satisfactory quality if it meets the 
requirement specified in the COP specification section for Concrete Pavement. 

The following guidelines can be used for concrete parking lot upon verified by 
the Design Engineer and approved by the City engineer. 

 

Component 

Material Thickness (Inches) 
Automobile 
Parking Area 
(EAL1<6) 

Driveways 
(Light Duty) 
(EAL = 6-20) 

Driveways and Truck 
Traffic Areas (Medium 
Duty) (EAL =21-75) 

Portland Cement Concrete 
(Min Comp. Strength 3500 psi) 5 6 7 

Lime Treated Subgrade 6 6 6 

Reinf. Steel (Grade 60) #3@18” c/c 
eachway 

#3@12” c/c 
eachway #4@18” c/c eachway 

1 Equivalent daily 18-kip single-axle load applications 

The above guideline is not intended as a substitute for geotechnical 
recommendation of a design professional and professional judgment. 

19 | P a g e  
 



 (2)  Hot-Mixed Asphaltic Concrete: 
a. An asphaltic concrete surface shall consist of a lime treated subgrade,  a 

base course, a surface course and leveling up surface as needed and as 
shown on the plans, each to be composed of a compacted mixture of 
mineral aggregate and asphaltic material. The pavement shall be 
constructed on the previously completed and approved subbase, base or 
existing pavement (asphaltic or Portland cement) as specified in this 
division and in accordance with the construction plans. 

b. The mineral aggregate shall be composed of a coarse aggregate and a 
fine aggregate bound together by asphaltic material. The grade of 
asphaltic material shall be type D of either hot mix-hot lay or hot mix-cold 
lay variety. The material used for Hot-mix asphalt concrete shall be in 
accordance to the COP specification for Asphaltic Concrete Pavement. 
The contractor shall notify the City Engineer of the source of the asphaltic 
material prior to the start of the project, and the source will be subject to 
the City Engineer’s approval. 

c. Proper compaction shall be attained to the satisfaction of the City 
Engineer through utilization of specified rollers or other approved rollers 
as specified in the COP specification section for Asphaltic Concrete 
Pavement. 

d. The following guidelines can be used for asphalt concrete parking lot upon 
verified by the Design Engineer and approved by the City engineer. 

 

Component 

Material Thickness (Inches) 
Automobile 
Parking Area 
(EAL1<6) 

Driveways 
(Light Duty) 
(EAL = 6-20) 

Driveways and Truck 
Traffic Areas (Medium 
Duty) (EAL =21-75) 

Hot Mix Asphalt 
Concrete 

2 2 2.5 

Base Course 6 8 10 
Lime Treated Subgrade 6 6 6 
1 Equivalent daily 18-kip single-axle load applications 

The above guideline is not intended as a substitute for geotechnical 
recommendation of a design professional and professional judgment. 

(3) Masonry Paving Units: Pervious or impervious masonry paving units shall be 
installed and maintained according to the manufacturer's recommendations for 
the anticipated traffic load. Masonry paving units shall not be used without 
obtaining a permit from the Building Official based upon review of construction 
plans and specifications, provided that no separate permit for the use of 
masonry paving units is required when the use is in connection with a building 
permit for construction activity on the same lot. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 

20 | P a g e  
 



 Other options for addressing the issue: 

One option which was discussed with the Commission pertained to limiting 
asphalt parking in certain zoning districts and/or within the Corridor Overlay 
Districts.   

 Basis for recommendation: 

Staff believes the current regulations in the Unified Development Code should be 
amended.  The proposed amendment will help to address the concern that 
asphalt is not as durable as other paving materials.  If asphalt is used and 
constructed in a more durable manner, aesthetic concerns will also be 
minimized.  The Planning and Zoning Commission concurs with this request. 

 

14. Require that all utilities throughout the city be underground:  

Section to be amended – Sections to be amended: Townhouse Residential 
District 2.4.2.9 (j), Multiple-Family Residential District 2.4.2.10 (r), 
Garden/O’Day Mixed Use District 2.4.3.3 (j), Cullen-Mixed Use District 
2.4.3.2. (i), General Commercial 2.4.4.6 (k), General Business Retail District 
2.4.4.5 (m), Neighborhood Service District 2.4.4.4 (l), Office & Professional 
District 2.4.4.2 (l) 
 
Proposed amendment: 
 
Add a section under each of the indicated zoning districts which do not already 
require underground electrical utility lines which states no overhead utilities shall 
be extended to the property unless in the rear of the property and not prominently 
visible.  Currently the City requires underground utilities in the Corridor Overlay 
Districts, and several other zoning districts, as indicated on the following chart.   
 
At this time we are recommending adding the underground requirement to 
additional commercial, mixed use, and higher density residential zoning districts 
only.  Below is a chart which further illustrates which zoning districts currently 
require underground utilities for new development as well as the districts that are 
being suggested to have the requirement added to: 
 

21 | P a g e  
 



 

The language below is the language currently used in the Unified Development 
Code in the districts which currently require underground electrical utilities. 

 
Amendment: 
 

Utilities. All utility service lines shall be located underground.  Above-ground 
lines may be located in the rear or other areas of the property as necessary, 
however such lines must not be prominent from the front view of the 
property or from thview of roadways (the visibility of the poles must be 
partially or wholly obscured).    Any determination on whether utilities are 
noticeable shall be made by the Planning Director 

 
Basis for recommendation: 
 
In light of recent cases which have resulted in new prominently visible above 
ground utility poles, there has been discussion on whether the City should 
require new poles and lines to be located underground in more areas of the City.  
This is being discussed not only for aesthetic reasons but also public safety 
concerns.  The topic of this proposed amendment has been discussed at City 
Council in the past and the Planning and Zoning Commission concurs with the 
amendment as proposed. 
 
 
 

15. Prohibit Temporary Buildings for permanent Commercial Use: 

Section to be amended - Sections proposed to be amended: General 
Definitions 5.1.1.1 (a) and Corridor Overlay Zoning District 2.4.5.1 (n) 

 
22 | P a g e  

 



Proposed amendment: 

The purpose of this proposed amendment is to prevent the use of temporary 
buildings being located on commercial property for permanent use.  This is not 
meant to prohibit the use of commercial construction trailers used during the 
construction process.  At this time staff’s recommendation is to add a definition to 
the UDC for temporary commercial buildings and add language to the Corridor 
Overlay District section that prohibits the use of these types of structures. This 
recommendation and definition comes from from examples of definitions and 
regulations from cities throughout the country and from discussions with local 
planners from surrounding communities.   

The proposed definition below is a combined effort between the Planning and 
Building Departments, as well as other research on the topic. 

Amendment: 

5.1.1.1 (a) 

(68) BUILDING, TEMPORARY (COMMERCIAL): Any building or structure that 
is designed to be transportable in one or more sections, on either a permanent or 
temporary chassis, and which may or may not be designed to be placed on a 
permanent or temporary foundation.  This definition does not include temporary 
construction trailers permitted as a Contractor’s Temporary On-Site Construction 
Office, as defined in Section 2.5.2.1 of the Unified Development Code unless 
associated with a Special Event permit and or permitted outdoor activity or use in 
applicable zoning district. 

 
Section 2.4.5.1 (n)  

(d) No temporary building shall be permitted for any type of use.  
 

Basis for recommendation: 

The reason for the amendment is that the City has seen a few cases in which 
temporary buildings have been left on site for permanent use.  The City 
responded to those cases by asking the property owner to apply a masonry 
material to the façade, as required by the UDC.  As stucco is considered a 
masonry material, property owners have added a layer of stucco to a temporary 
building, which then meets the requirements of the code, but in reality, there is 
still a temporary building on site.  The Pearland Economic Development 
Corporation and the Planning and Zoning Commission concur with this 
amendment. 

23 | P a g e  
 



 

16.  Proposed Amendments to allowable uses in the Spectrum S4 and S5  
       zoning districts. 
         

Section to be amended – Section 2.5.2.1 Land Use Matrix 

Proposed amendment: 
 
A Joint Workshop was conducted with City Council and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission on December 3, 2012 where amendments to the City’s Land Use 
Matrix was proposed which involved adding additional allowable land uses to the 
Spectrum S4 and S5 zoning districts.  As discussed at the workshop, these 
zones were established in 2004 and it was envisioned that the area would attract 
medical related uses and therefore medical manufacturing and uses in the 
medical field were permitted.  In the past few years, the City has witnessed a 
demand for visible and accessible sites that would permit other similar 
manufacturing uses, in a controlled and pleasing environment.  At the time of the 
December 2012 workshop, City Council and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission concurred with adding the additional land uses. 
 
Amendment: 

 

 

24 | P a g e  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

25 | P a g e  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

26 | P a g e  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

27 | P a g e  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

28 | P a g e  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

29 | P a g e  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

30 | P a g e  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

31 | P a g e  
 



 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

 

 

 

 

32 | P a g e  
 



Basis for recommendation: 

Staff believes that the proposed revision to the land use matrix will facilitate 
location of additional uses in the area.  The development guidelines in the SP4 
and SP5 zoning districts will ensure that the intent of the Comprehensive Plan is 
maintained, specifically – “mixture of architectural and design characteristics that 
are aesthetically pleasing”. 

This area currently lacks appropriate public utilities and infrastructure to 
accommodate future industrial development.  Ideally the public will partner with 
private developers to improve the infrastructure in the area.  Due to the 
significant public investment that has already been committed to in this area and 
the additional public and private investment that will be needed in the future, it is 
important that we ensure high quality development that will provide the tax base 
to support the investment.  The Pearland Economic Development Corporation 
concurs with this amendment. 

 
 

 
Recommended action: 
 
Conduct the workshop and provide staff with direction. 
 

33 | P a g e  
 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The City’s Unified Development Code, initially adopted in February 2006, is 
reviewed annually.  This review is based on input over the past year from citizens, 
developers, City Council, the Planning and Zoning Commission, board members, 
and city staff.  Based on this input, Planning staff creates a list of proposed 
amendments to the Unified Development Code.  These amendments are discussed 
in this report in two separate sections, as outlined below: 
 
 1) UDC clarifications and minor amendments 
 2) Cluster Development Plan discussion 
 
 

 
AGENDA OF: October 7, 2013 ITEM NO.:    
 
DATE SUBMITTED: September 25, 2013  DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 
 
PREPARED BY:  Harold Ellis PRESENTOR:     Harold Ellis                                                                                     
                                
REVIEWED BY:                                            REVIEW DATE:  
 
 
SUBJECT:  Annual Unified Development Code Updates (T-16) 

 
EXHIBITS: A) Agenda Request for September 16, 2013 Joint Workshop 
                   B) Draft Cluster Development Plan amendments discussed with the        
                        Commission 
                   C) January 7, 2013 Planning and Zoning Commission Workshop     
                        powerpoint presentation regarding Cluster Development Plans 
 
EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
 
To be completed by Department: 
          Finance     Legal        Ordinance    Resolution 

1 | P a g e  
 



UDC Clarifications and minor amendments 
 
Workshops were conducted with the Planning and Zoning Commission on July 15, 
August 5 and August 19, 2013, to discuss this year’s proposed amendments.  
These amendments were presented to the City Council by the Planning and Zoning 
Commission at a Joint Workshop on September 16, 2013.  This year there were a 
total of sixteen (16) proposed amendments.  Of this number, Council concurred with 
10 (ten) of the proposed amendments with little or no discussion.  For reference, all 
of the proposed amendments are listed in attached Exhibit A, Agenda Request for 
September 16, 2013 Joint Workshop.  
 
This report will focus on the three (3) proposed amendments which Council 
recommended be clarified or modified. There are three (3) originally proposed 
amendments which, following the Joint Workshop, have been removed from this 
year’s annual Unified Development Code update list.  These two items, which 
pertain electrical utility requirements and human sign requirements, need additional 
research and will be discussed at the next update of the UDC.  The last item, which 
pertains to wine bars, will continue to be Texas Alcoholic Beverage Commission 
and County regulations.  

 

1. Clarification of buffering along Thoroughfares: 

Section of be amended - Screening 4.2.4.1 (c) (1) 

Proposed amendment: 

This is a clarification to ensure that when a landscape reserve is shown to be 
located between a subdivision and a thoroughfare, a masonry wall is required as 
opposed to wood fencing, unless screening alternatives are proposed.  Based on 
feedback received at the Joint Workshop, staff has amended the language as 
indicated below.  Council indicated that there should be a distance requirement 
added to this section of the code so that lots which were in excess of the 
specified distance would be exempt from this requirement. 

This clarification will ensure that proposed subdivisions comply with all screening 
requirements when abutting/visible from a thoroughfare. 

 Amendment: 

4.2.4.1 (c) (1) 

(c) Residential Screening Along Major and Secondary Thoroughfares (Applies to 
the City & ETJ). 

(1) Requirement Criteria:  Where residential subdivisions are platted so that the 
rear or side yards of single-family or two-family residential lots are adjacent to 
and within 200’ of a major or secondary thoroughfare roadway right-of-way line 
as described in Chapter 3, or are separated from such thoroughfare by an 

2 | P a g e  
 



alley, landscape, or open space area/detention facility and utility easements, or 
back up to such thoroughfare, the developer shall provide, at its sole expense, 
a minimum six-foot tall masonry screening wall (also see Subsection (2) 
below), or some other alternative form of screening, if approved by the 
Planning Director, according to the following alternatives and standards.  All 
screening shall be adjacent to the right-of-way or property line and fully located 
on the private lot(s), including columns and decorative features.  All forms of 
screening shall conform to the requirements of City ordinances and policies 
that govern sight distance for traffic safety. 

 Screening Alternatives:  Screening shall be provided in accordance with, and 
shall be constructed to, standards and criteria as set forth in the City’s EDCM.  
An alternative form of screening, in lieu of the masonry wall, may be approved 
by Planning Director and the City Engineer with the Preliminary Subdivision 
Plat or Preliminary Development Plat application.  Alternatives that may 
considered include: 

a. A living/landscaped screen in conjunction with decorative metal (e.g., 
wrought iron) fence sections with masonry columns; 

b. A combination of berms and living/landscaped screening; 
c. A combination of berms, decorative masonry walls and living/landscaped 

screening, either with or without a decorative metal or “WoodCrete” type 
of fence with masonry columns;  or 

d. Some other creative screening alternative may be approved if it meets the 
spirit and intent of this Section, if it is demonstrated to be long-lasting and 
generally maintenance-free, and if the Planning Director and City 
Engineer find it to be in the public interest to approve the alternative 
screening device. 

 
            Basis for Recommendation 
            

This language clarification will avoid confusion in the interpretation of the 
requirement.  The Planning and Zoning Commission concurred with this 
clarification.   

2. Prohibit Temporary Buildings for permanent commercial use: 

Section to be amended - Sections proposed to be amended: General 
Definitions 5.1.1.1 (a) and Corridor Overlay Zoning District 2.4.5.1 (n) 

Proposed amendment: 

The purpose of this proposed amendment is to prevent the use of temporary 
buildings being located on commercial property for permanent use.  This is not 
meant to prohibit the use of commercial construction trailers used during the 
construction process.  At this time staff’s recommendation is to add a definition to 
the UDC for temporary commercial buildings and add language to the Corridor 
Overlay District section that prohibits the use of these types of structures. This 
recommendation and definition comes from examples of definitions and 

3 | P a g e  
 



regulations from cities throughout the country and from discussions with local 
planners from surrounding communities.  Council feedback generally supported 
the amendment, however the amendment needed to be reworded for additional 
clarity. 

The proposed definition below is a combined effort between the Planning and 
Building Departments, as well as other research on the topic. 

Amendment: 

5.1.1.1 (a) 

(68) BUILDING, TEMPORARY (COMMERCIAL): Any building or structure that 
is designed to be transportable in one or more sections, and placed on a 
temporary chassis. This definition does not include temporary construction 
trailers permitted as a Contractor’s Temporary On-Site Construction Office, as 
defined in Section 2.5.2.1 of the Unified Development Code unless associated 
with a Special Event permit and or permitted outdoor activity or use in applicable 
zoning district. 

Section 2.4.5.1 (n)  
(d) No temporary building shall be permitted for any type of use.  

 

Basis for recommendation: 

The reason for the amendment is that the City has seen a few cases in which 
temporary buildings have been left on site for permanent use.  The City 
responded to those cases by asking the property owner to apply a masonry 
material to the façade, as required by the UDC.  As stucco is considered a 
masonry material, property owners have added a layer of stucco to a temporary 
building, which then meets the requirements of the code, but in reality, there is 
still a temporary building on site.  The Pearland Economic Development 
Corporation and the Planning and Zoning Commission concur with this 
amendment. 

4. Separate new and used car sales in the land use matrix:  

Section to be amended - Section to be changed: 2.5.2.1 

Proposed amendment: 

The original proposal taken to the Joint Workshop was to separate new and used 
car sales and require used car sales to obtain a Conditional Use Permit prior to 
obtaining a Certificate of Occupancy.  Based on Council’s feedback at the 
workshop, the amended proposal is to require a Conditional Use Permit for both 
new and used car facilities.  This will allow the City Council to look at each 

4 | P a g e  
 



request and determine if the site is best suited for the proposed use.  
Additionally, the proposed change will allow Council to determine what, if any, 
improvements need to be completed prior to issuance of a Certificate of 
Occupancy.  This is particularly important in cases where existing facilities, not 
previously used for auto sales, are being converted to the auto sales use. 

Recently we have had a number of used car lots open up throughout the city.  
The majority of these have opened on sites that do not currently comply with the 
Unified Development Code and no site improvements are triggered or 
undertaken.  This has led to further deterioration of the sites as the intensity of 
the used car sales use exceeds that of previous uses on these sites. 

Amendment: 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Basis for recommendation: 

Staff believes we will continue to have requests to convert structures not 
designed for used car sales into those types of facilities without giving the City 
Council the ability to review these requests and request site improvements which 
may make the site better suited for the proposed use.  Additionally, Council will 
also have the ability to review requests for new car dealerships and determine if 
they are best suited on site where they may be proposed in the future.  The 
Planning and Zoning Commission concurs with this amendment. 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Use Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Mixed Use 
Districts 

Old 
Town 

Non-Residential Zoning 
Districts 

Auto 
Sales/Dealer 

(New and 
Used– In 

Building, (Auto 
Servicing as 

accessory uses 
only) 

Combined auto 
lease 

SD
 

R-
E 

SR
-1

5 
SR

-1
2 

R-
1 

R-
2 

R-
3 

R-
4 

TH
 

M
F 

M
H 

SPD 

C-
M

U
 

G
/O

-
M

U
 

O
T-

R 
O

T-
GB

 

O
T-

M
U

 

RR
N

 

O
P 

BP
-2

88
 

N
S 

G
B G
C 

M
-1

 

M
-2

 

S1
 

S2
 

S3
 

S4
 

S5
 

                                      C           C C C C 
Description:  A paved area for the display for sale of motorized vehicles accompanied by an on-site 
office with staffing during normal business hours.  

Parking:  One space per 1500 square feet of open sales lot and enclosed floor area devoted to the 
sale and display. 

 

5 | P a g e  
 



Cluster Development Plan Discussion 
 

The City has experienced an increase in Cluster Development Plan activity both in the 
form of formal Cluster Development Plan applications, as well as general discussions 
with developers pertaining to possible future submittals.  The Planning and Zoning 
Commission held workshops on January 7, February 4, March 4, and May 6, 2013 to 
discuss the options on the best manner to address future cluster development cases.  
At these workshops, staff presented a history and background of Cluster Development 
Plans, in general; a summary of how Pearland’s Comprehensive Plan and Unified 
Development Code currently addresses Cluster Development Plans; current and 
suggested review criteria of a Cluster Development Plan approval (including amenities); 
differences between a Cluster Development Plan and a Planned Development; and how 
surrounding cities address Cluster Development Plans/types of developments.   
 
These workshops stemmed from an increase in Cluster Development Plan activity, and 
input from staff, the development community, City Council, and the Planning and Zoning 
Commission which indicated that there was currently a lack of detailed approval criteria 
in the Unified Development Code.  Additionally, the Commission was concerned that a 
few Cluster Plan applications may have been approved in recent past that may not have 
best met the intent of a Cluster Plan.  Public notification of pending Cluster Plan 
approvals was also discussed as being a concern, as the current process does not 
include a public hearing or notification process. 

 
Two options were discussed with the Commission to address these concerns.  One 
option was to add to the approval criteria currently in the Unified Development Code to 
provide applicants, staff, and the Planning and Zoning Commission clarity in expected 
amenities for Cluster Plans.  There was also discussion of adding a public hearing 
component to the process as the approval of a Cluster Plan allows the ability to deviate 
from lot size, which may result in smaller lots abutting existing residential homes which 
may be on larger lots.  Language was drafted by Planning and Legal staff reflecting 
these proposed changes to the current Cluster Development Plan section of the Unified 
Development Code for review by the Commission.  This language is attached to this 
report as Exhibit B, Draft Cluster Development Plan amendments discussed with the 
Commission. Upon further discussing these changes, the Commission found it difficult 
to identify exactly what amenities were appropriate for Cluster Plans, and how to 
quantify them based on the size of development.   
 
The second option discussed was to handle Cluster Development type proposals in the 
form of a Planned Development.  This is the manner in which the surrounding 
communities address them, and allows the Commission the ability to analyze each 
proposal on a case by case basis and also addresses the public hearing concern.  The 
Commission discussed the option of having detailed approval criteria (such as 
amenities based on a sliding scale) within the Planned Development language in the 
Unified Development Code.  After lengthy discussion, the Commission felt that rather 
than having a preset list of amenities, that they, as a Commission, could hold each case 
to the most appropriate level of review and recommend the most appropriate amenities 
on an individual basis through the Planned Development process, rather than having a 
preset approval or amenity guide.  Therefore, the Commission determined that the best 

6 | P a g e  
 



route moving forward would be to eliminate the use of the Cluster Development Plan 
section of the Unified Development Code and instead allow applicants to apply for a 
Planned Development and follow that review and approval process.   
 

Section to be amended 2.2.4.1: 
 
Section 2.2.4.1 Purpose and Applicability 
(a) Purpose.  The purpose of a Cluster Development Plan shall be to authorize 

the use of residential density standards in substitution for minimum lot size 
standards for residential uses. 

(b) Applicability.  A Cluster Development Plan shall be required inside the City 
limits whenever the property owner seeks authorization to have subsequent 
development applications reviewed under residential density standards in lieu 
of minimum lot size standards.  

        (1) This section of the Unified Development Code shall no longer be 
effective or applicable with the adoption of Ordinance 2000T-16, January 9, 
2014. 

 
This was initiated by the Planning and Zoning Commission and discussions with 
City Council.   

 
 
Recommended action: 
 
Conduct the workshop and provide staff with direction. 
 
 
 
 
 

7 | P a g e  
 



AGENDA   REQUEST 
BUSINESS OF THE CITY COUNCIL 

CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS 

 
EXECUTIVE SUMMARY 

 
The City’s Unified Development Code, initially adopted in February 2006, is 
reviewed annually.  This review is based on input over the past year from citizens, 
developers, City Council, the Planning and Zoning Commission, board members, 
and city staff.  Based on this input, Planning staff creates a list of proposed 
amendments to the Unified Development Code.  This initial list was finalized as a 
result of a series of workshops with the Planning and Zoning Commission on July 
15, 2013; August 5; and 19, 2013.  The Commission then presented their final list of 
recommended changes to the City Council in the form of two Joint Workshop’s, on 
September 16, and October 7, 2013.    
 
The third and final joint workshop is to discuss one additional amendment to the 
Unified Development Code, not discussed at prior workshops.  This amendment 
pertains to the Garden/O’Day-Mixed Use zoning district, pertaining to the re-use of 
existing commercial buildings/properties used for non-residential purposes.  More 
specifically, and as discussed in more detail in this report, this amendment 

 
AGENDA OF: November 4, 2013 ITEM NO.:    
 
DATE SUBMITTED: October 29, 2013        DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning 
 
PREPARED BY: Harold Ellis and PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao 
                               Johnna Matthews 
REVIEWED BY:                                            REVIEW DATE:  
 
 
SUBJECT:  Annual Unified Development Code Updates (T-16) – Additional     
                    Amendment regarding the Garden/O’Day Mixed Use Zoning District 
 
EXHIBITS:  Proposed Additional Amendment and Recommended Language 
                     
 
EXPENDITURE REQUIRED:   N/A AMOUNT BUDGETED:   N/A 
AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
 
ADDITIONAL APPROPRIATION REQUIRED:   N/A 
ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A 
PROJECT NO.:   N/A 
 
To be completed by Department: 
          Finance     Legal        Ordinance    Resolution 

1 | P a g e  
 



proposes to expand upon the current section of the Unified Development Code 
which allows a property owner to seek a Conditional Use Permit to allow uses 
which were either allowed by-right or with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
in the property’s former zoning district if the property was formerly zoned Light or 
Heavy Industrial (M-1 or M-2). 
 
The next steps in the annual Unified Development Code amendment process 
include a Joint Public Hearing, which is scheduled for November 18, 2013, followed 
by first and second readings of the ordinance adopting the amendments.  This 
year’s amendments, if approved, would result in the 16th amendment to the Unified 
Development Code, and are anticipated to be finalized in January, 2014. 
 
Additions to the Unified Development Code are shown in red font and deletions are 
shown in red strikeout font.  Current code language is Italicized. 

 
 
Exhibit 1 Proposed Additional  Amendment and Recommended Language: 
 
Addition to existing UDC language 
 

1. Adding additional uses, by way of Conditional Use Permit, in the 
Garden/O’Day Mixed Use District (G/O-MU): 
 
Section to be amended – Industrial Use CUP- 2.4.3.3 (i) 

Proposed amendment: 

Currently in the G/O-MU zoning district, properties which were formerly zoned 
industrial (either M-1 or M-2), are eligible to be granted a Conditional Use Permit 
to allow uses not permitted in the existing zone, but were permitted either by right 
or with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit in the property’s former zone.   

It has recently been discussed that there are a number of nonresidential uses 
which currently exist on properties where the former zoning was not industrial 
and therefore are not able to request a Conditional Use Permit to continue or 
introduce a use formerly permitted on the property.  In addition to industrial 
zones, properties were formerly zoned the following non-residential and 
residential zoning districts: 

Non-Residential    Residential 

Commercial (C)    Suburban Development (SD) 

General Business (GB)   Low Density Residential (R-1) 

Office Professional (OP)  Residential Estate (RE) 

 

2 | P a g e  
 



Staff has identified two issues which need to be addressed: 

1) Properties which were zoned Office Professional (OP), General Business 
(GB), Commercial (C), Light Industrial (M-1), and Heavy Industrial (M-2) prior to 
the adoption of the Unified Development Code when the Garden/O’Day Mixed 
Use (G/O-MU) zoning district was applied.   

These properties had uses which were permitted by their prior zoning but are not 
permitted by the Garden/O’Day Mixed Use (G/O-MU) zoning district. 

In order to ensure that these properties are able to continue, resume, and 
change to any use that was permitted by their prior zoning of Office Professional 
(OP), General Business (GB), Commercial (C), Light Industrial (M-1), and Heavy 
Industrial (M-2), staff is proposing the following amendment: 

Amendment: 

2.4.3.3 (i) 

(i) Industrial Use CUP for properties formerly zoned non-residential prior to the 
adoption of the Unified Development Code. 

  (1) Eligibility.  Properties located on Garden Road or O’Day Road within the 
current Garden/O’Day Mixed Use zoning district that were formerly zoned 
Neighborhood Service (NS), Office Professional (OP),General Business (GB), 
Commercial (C), Light Industrial District (M-1) or Heavy Industrial District (M-2) 
and which were rezoned to Garden/O-Day Mixed Use District (G/O-MU) when 
the UDC was adopted in 2006, are eligible to seek one of two Industrial Use 
CUPs, either an M-1 CUP or an M-2 CUP a Conditional Use Permit (CUP), 
based upon the each individual propertiesy’s’ previous zoning. 

  (2) Effect. 

    a. The M-1Conditional Use Permit (CUP) would add all permitted uses and 
uses permitted by the approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) 
allowed in the M-1property’s prior zoning district as listed in the Unified 
Development Code’s Land Use Matrix and/or the Land Use and Urban 
Development Ordinance’s Schedule of Uses, in addition to the permitted 
uses for the underlying G/O-MU zoning.  Uses listed as conditional uses 
for the M-1 district would require a separate CUP to authorize. 

    b. The M-2 CUP would add all permitted uses allowed in the M-2 zoning 
district as listed in the Land Use Matrix in addition to the permitted uses 
for the underlying G/O-MU zoning.  Uses listed as conditional uses for the 
M-2 district would require a separate CUP to authorize. 

  (3) Applicable requirements.  The zoning district regulations applicable to a 
property zoned G/O-MU with an Industrial Usea Conditional Use Permit  (CUP) 
shall follow be determined by the primary use of said property.  If the primary 
use is a G/O-MU use, then the regulations for the G/O-MU district shall apply. 
Additional regulations may be placed on the Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in 
accordance with Section 2.2.3.4 (b).  If the primary use is an M-1 or M-2 use, 
then the regulations for the appropriate industrial district shall apply.  If the use 

3 | P a g e  
 



is permitted in both the G/O-MU district and the industrial district, then the less 
restrictive regulations shall apply. 

  (4) Expiration.  The abandonment and expiration provisions of Section 2.2.3.5 shall 
not apply. to any Industrial Use CUP.  

 

2)  Properties that were being used as non-residential uses and were zoned 
Suburban Development (SD), Low Density Residential (R-1), and Residential 
Estate (RE) prior to the adoption of the Unified Development Code when the 
Garden/O’Day Mixed Use (G/O-MU) zoning district was applied. 

In order to ensure that these properties are able to be developed, redeveloped, 
or reused in the manner in which they are currently being used, were used prior 
to the properties current zone, this amendment proposes a Conditional Use 
Permit process to allow for additional uses, based upon the properties prior use. 

 In order to ensure that properties which were zoned residential prior to the 
application of the Garden O’Day Mixed Use Zoning District and were being used 
as non-residential, a non-residential base zoning district needs to be applied to 
the property.  This zoning district will be used for the purposes of establishing 
what uses would be allowed with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit.  As 
part of the Planning Department’s analysis, as shown below and indicated on the 
attached map, it has been determined that existing non-residential properties, 
which were A) developed either with a prior residential zone in place or B) prior to 
annexation, the Unified Development Code’s General Commercial (GC) zone will 
best allow all existing uses to remain, expand, or change, with the approval of a 
Conditional Use Permit.  

 
Garden/O’Day Road Land Use Classification 

 
The Garden/O’Day Mixed Use (G/O-MU) zoning district was applied to the below properties with 
the adoption of the Unified Development Code (UDC) in February, 2006. 
 
Properties located on the east side of O’Day Road were annexed in 1983; properties located on 
the west side of O’Day Road were annexed in 1995 and 1996.  Properties located on the east 
side of Garden Road were annexed in 1996; and properties located on the west side of Garden 
Road were annexed in 1997. 

 
Number 

 Identification 
 on Map 

Historical Zoning- 
Land Use and Urban 

Development Ordinance 

UDC Land Use  
Classification 

Current 
Zoning 
Status 

Effect of 
Proposed T-

16 
Amendment 

1 Suburban Development 
District (SD) 

N/A 
(CUP 2009-18, Od. # 

2000CUP-41) 

N/A N/A 

2 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Office (Other Than Listed) C P 

4 | P a g e  
 



3 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

NC CUP 

4 Heavy Industrial District 
(M-2) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

(CUP 2008-14, Ord. # 
2000CUP-15) 

C CUP 

5 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

NC CUP 

6 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Heavy Machinery Sales/ 
Storage, Rental &  Repair 

NC CUP 

7 School (S) & Suburban 
Development District (SD) 

School/Elementary C P 

8 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

NC CUP 

9 School (S) Church, Temple, Place of 
Worship 

(CUP, Ord. # 509-666) 

C P 

10 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Heavy Machinery Sales/ 
Storage, Rental &  Repair 

NC CUP 

11 Heavy Industrial District 
(M-2) 

Metal, Machine or Wood 
Shop 

(CUP2008-14 Ord. # 
2000CUP-15) 

C CUP 

12 Heavy Industrial District 
(M-2) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 
(CUP2008-14 Ord. # 2000 

CUP-15) 

C CUP 

13 Heavy Industrial District 
(M-2) 

Light Manufacturing 
(CUP2008-14, Ord. # 2000 

CUP-15) 

C CUP 

14 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Church, Temple, Place of 
Worship 

C P 

15 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Pet & Animal Grooming 
Shop 

C CUP 

16 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

NC CUP 

17 Commercial (C) Auto Repair (Major) NC CUP 
18 Suburban Development 

District 
(SD) 

Mini-Warehouse 
Storage/Sales 

NC CUP 

19 Office Professional District 
(OP) 

Office (Other Than Listed) C P 

5 | P a g e  
 



20 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

NC CUP 

21 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Auto Repair (Major) NC CUP 

22 Heavy Industrial District 
(M-2) 

Office/Warehouse 
Light Manufacturing 
(CUP 2008-14, Ord. # 

2000CUP-15) 

C CUP 

23 Heavy Industrial District 
(M-2) 

Office (Other Than Listed) 
Office Warehouse 

(CUP 2008-14, Ord. # 
2000CUP-15) 

C CUP 

24 Low Density Residential 
(R-) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

NC CUP 

25 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Upholstery Business NC CUP 

26 Suburban Development 
District 

(SD) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

NC CUP 

27 Light Industrial District 
(M-1) 

Office 
Warehouse/Storage/Sales 

(CUP 2008-14, Ord. # 
2000 CUP-15) 

C CUP 

28 Suburban Development 
District (SD) 

N/A N/A N/A 

29 Commercial (C) N/A N/A N/A 
 

C: Conforming 
NC: Non-conforming 
P: Permitted 
CUP: Permitted with the approval of a Conditional Use Permit 
 
While it is always the intent of the Planning Department to provide clear and accurate information; 
the information provided is preliminary in nature and is based on a windshield survey and minor 
discrepancies may exist. 

 
 
           Amendment     
 

2.4.3.3 (j) 

(j) CUP for properties formerly zoned residential prior to the adoption of the 
Unified Development Code. 

  (1) Eligibility.  Properties located on within the current Garden/O’Day Mixed Use 
zoning district that were formerly zoned Suburban Development (SD), Low 
Density Residential (R-1), or Residential Estate (RE) and which were rezoned 
to Garden/O-Day Mixed Use District (G/O-MU) when the UDC was adopted in 
2006, are eligible to seek a Conditional Use Permit (CUP). 

6 | P a g e  
 



  (2) Effect. 

    a. The Conditional Use Permit (CUP) would add all permitted uses and uses 
permitted by the approval of a Conditional Use Permit (CUP) allowed in 
the General Commercial (GC) zoning district as listed in the Unified 
Development Code’s Land Use Matrix and/or the Land Use and Urban 
Development Ordinance’s Schedule of Uses, in addition to the permitted 
uses for the underlying G/O-MU zoning.   

    

  (3) Applicable requirements.  The zoning district regulations applicable to a 
property zoned G/O-MU with a Conditional Use Permit  (CUP) shall follow the 
regulations for the G/O-MU district. Additional regulations may be placed on the 
Conditional Use Permit (CUP) in accordance with Section 2.2.3.4 (b).   

  (4) Expiration.  The abandonment and expiration provisions of Section 2.2.3.5 shall  
apply.  

 
 
           Basis for Recommendation 
            

As previously mentioned, the Planning Department has done an analysis of non-
residential properties in the G/O-MU zoning district.  The results of this analysis 
indicate that are a total of approximately 27 existing non-residential properties 
within the boundaries of the existing zoning district.  The majority of the non-
residential uses are along Garden Road, with approximately 21 businesses, and 
the remaining 6 being located along O’Day Road.   

As the chart below indicates, there are a wide variety of non-residential uses 
currently operating in the G/O-MU zoning district.  It should be noted, however, 
that most of the uses are not retail related and are more service oriented 
businesses. 

A summary of the uses identified by staff is below, classified by the Unified 
Development Code’s Land Use Matrix: 

 Quantity Land Use Matrix Classification  

2  Auto Repair (Major)   
2  Church, Temple, Place of Worship 
2  Heavy Machinery Sales, Storage, Rental and Repair 
1  Light Manufacturing 
1  Metal, Machine, or Wood Shop 
1  Mini-Warehouse Storage/Sales 
3  Office (Other than listed) 
12  Office Warehouse Storage/Sales 
1  Pet and Animal Grooming Shop 

  1   School, Elem, Jr, or High School (Public or Parochial) 
  1   Upholstery Business 
  3  Vacant Non-residential (land classification not applicable) 

7 | P a g e  
 



  
As the Garden/O’Day Mixed Use zoning district currently has the uses listed 
above, and the Unified Development Code currently allows industrial uses which 
were formerly permitted to go through the Conditional Use Permit process to 
locate or expand within the current zoning, staff believes additional uses which 
were also permitted in former zoning districts or within the General Commercial 
(GC) zone for properties with a residential prior zoning would not adversely 
impact the area.   
 
Through the Conditional Use Permit process, the Planning and Zoning 
Commission and City Council will have the opportunity to review each request for 
a use not currently permitted in the Garden/O’Day Mixed Use zone, ensure the 
requested use is suited for the proposed site, and add conditions of approval if 
necessary to ensure compatibility and mitigate any potentially adverse impacts.         
 
For reference, the criteria of approval in Section 2.2.3.4 of the Unified 
Development Code, as well as the discussion on conditions of approved is 
provided below: 
 

    SSeeccttiioonn  22..22..33..44  CCrriitteerriiaa  ffoorr  AApppprroovvaall  
(a) Factors.  When considering an application for a Conditional Use Permit, the 

Planning and Zoning Commission and City Council shall evaluate the impact of the 
proposed conditional use on and its compatibility with surrounding properties and 
residential areas to ensure the appropriateness of the use at the particular location, 
and shall consider the extent to which: 

(1) The proposed use at the specified location is consistent with the policies 
embodied in the adopted Comprehensive Plan; 

(2) The proposed use is consistent with the general purpose and intent of the 
applicable zoning district regulations; 

(3) The proposed use is compatible with and preserves the character and integrity 
of adjacent developments and neighborhoods, and includes improvements 
either on-site or within the public rights-of-way to mitigate development related 
adverse impacts, such as traffic, noise, odors, visual nuisances, drainage or 
other similar adverse effects to adjacent development and neighborhoods; 

(4) The proposed use does not generate pedestrian and vehicular traffic which will 
be hazardous or conflict with the existing and anticipated traffic in the 
neighborhood; 

(5) The proposed use incorporates roadway adjustments, traffic control devices or 
mechanisms, and access restrictions to control traffic flow or divert traffic as 
may be needed to reduce or eliminate development generated traffic on 
neighborhood streets; 

(6) The proposed use incorporates features to minimize adverse effects, including 
visual impacts, of the proposed conditional use on adjacent properties; and 

(7) The proposed use meets the standards for the zoning district, or to the extent 
variations from such standards have been requested, that such variations are 
necessary to render the use compatible with adjoining development and the 
neighborhood. 

8 | P a g e  
 



(b) Conditions.  The City Council may require such modifications in the proposed use 
and attach such conditions to the Conditional Use Permit as the City Council deems 
necessary to mitigate adverse effects of the proposed use and to carry out the spirit 
and intent of this section. Conditions and modifications may include but are not 
limited to limitation of building size or height, increased open space, limitations on 
impervious surfaces, enhanced loading and parking requirements, additional 
landscaping, curbing, sidewalk, vehicular access and parking improvements, 
placement or orientation of buildings and entryways, buffer yards, landscaping and 
screening, signage restrictions and design, maintenance of buildings and outdoor 
areas, duration of the permit and hours of operation. 

   
Recommended action: 
 
Conduct the workshop and provide staff with direction. 
 

9 | P a g e  
 



P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

C 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    11/12/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Sec. One 

 
 

 Old Business          New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering., applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel Heights at 
Savannah Section One, generally located at the Northeast corner of Post Road (CR 
58) and Linden Creek Lane, proposing a 61 lot single-family residential subdivision 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
11/14/2013 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section One 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION   
MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 2013 
 

 
 

FINAL PLAT OF LAUREL HEIGHTS AT SAVANNAH SECTION ONE 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section One, generally located at the Northeast corner of 
Post Road (CR 58) and Linden Creek Lane, proposing a 61 lot single-family 
residential subdivision, on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description:  Being 17.1 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Survey, Abstract 302, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas  
 
 
General Location: Located at the Northeast corner of Post Road (CR 58) and 

Linden Creek Lane 
  

 
SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting approval of a Final Plat for a 61 lot single-
family subdivision in Savannah.  This proposed subdivision is fully within the 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Pearland.  As the property is in the ETJ, 
the city zoning ordinance does not apply. However, this development is governed by a 
development agreement which does adhere to the zoning ordinance dealing specifically 
with lot sizes, density, and setback requirements. The proposed section is in full 
compliance with the approved Development Agreement.  
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: The development requirements within the UDC do 
not apply as this development is located within the ETJ. 
 
SAVANNAH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:  The submitted Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section One appears to be in conformance with the approved 
Savannah Development agreement.   
    
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North ETJ (None) Vacant Land  
South ETJ (None) Post Rd. (CR 58) 
East ETJ (None) Vacant Land 
West ETJ (None) Vacant Land 

 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section One 

Page 2 
 

COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The subject property is within 
the Low-Density Residential land use plan designation.  The proposed subdivision is not 
within the guidelines of Low-Density Residential land use designation as the average lot 
size is around 6,875 sq. ft. The proposed development is in conformance with the 
approved development agreement.    
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The preliminary plat for this section of the development was 
approved on September 16, 2013.  This is also the first section of the development 
north of Post Rd. (CR 58), to submit for final plat approval.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is located 
at the corner of Post Rd. (CR 58), a major thoroughfare with a minimum right-of-way 
120’, and Linden Creek, a local street with a minimum right-of-way of 60’.   
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: The proposed Final Plat 
should not have any significant adverse impacts on any surrounding structures or uses 
as the proposed development is in conformance with the approved development 
agreement.    
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A traffic impact analysis was submitted and 
approved by the city’s Engineering Department as part of the Savannah Development 
Agreement.  All requirements of the analysis have been met. 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to this 
subdivision through Municipal Utility District (MUD) 22.  
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance with the 
Savannah Development Agreement.    
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees have been paid as required by the 
development agreement.      
 
1% INSPECTION FEES:  As required by the Savannah Development agreement, the 
1% inspection fees have been paid in full.   
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there were no additional comments.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section One as proposed by the applicant, for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section One 

Page 3 
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan and Development 
Agreement.   
 

3. The Savannah Development Agreement will assure the development of this 
property is in conformance with the goals of the city. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Laurel Heights at Savannah Section One Plat 

 
 

 
 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section OneBrazoria

POST RD

FRIO DR

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DRVICTORIA AVE

CENTRAL AVE

SA
VA

NN
AH

 PK
WY

JASPER DR

SAVANNAH BEND DR

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

CR 173

CAMERON DR

HUDSPETH DR

ANGELINA DR

SILVER SAGE LN

LILAC GROVE LN

RIO RAMOS ST ¯0 340 680170 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP MapFi

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section One

Low Density Residential

Brazoria
POST RD

FRIO DR

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DRVICTORIA AVE

CENTRAL AVE

SA
VA

NN
AH

 PK
WY

JASPER DR

SAVANNAH BEND DR

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

CR 173

CAMERON DR

HUDSPETH DR

ANGELINA DR

SILVER SAGE LN

LILAC GROVE LN

RIO RAMOS ST ¯0 340 680170 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section One

POST RD

FRIO DR

VICTORIA AVE

CENTRAL AVE

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DR

SAVANNAH PKWY

JASPER DR

CR 173

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

HUDSPETH DR

CAMERON DR

ANGELINA DR

¯0 310 620155 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

D 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    11/12/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Sec. Two 

 
 

 Old Business          New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel Heights at 
Savannah Section Two, generally located east of Linden Creek Lane, north of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section One, proposing a 40 lot single-family residential 
subdivision 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
11/14/2013 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section Two 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION   
MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 2013 
 

 
 

FINAL PLAT OF LAUREL HEIGHTS AT SAVANNAH SECTION TWO 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section Two, generally East of  Linden Creek Lane, North 
of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section One, proposing a 40 lot single-family 
residential subdivision, on  the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description:  Being 9.1 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. Survey, 
Abstract 302, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas  
 
 
General Location: Located East of Linden Creek Lane, North of Laurel Heights 

at Savannah Section. 
  

 
SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting approval of a Final Plat for a 40 lot single-
family subdivision in Savannah.  This proposed subdivision is fully within the 
Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Pearland.  As the property is in the ETJ, 
the city zoning ordinance does not apply. However, this development is governed by a 
development agreement which adheres to the zoning ordinance dealing specifically with 
lot sizes, density, and setback requirements. The proposed section is in full compliance 
with the approved Development Agreement.  
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: The development requirements within the UDC do 
not apply as this development is located within the ETJ. 
 
SAVANNAH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:  The submitted Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section Two appears to be in conformance with the approved 
Savannah Development agreement.   
    
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 
 
 
 
 
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North ETJ (None) Vacant Land  
South ETJ (None) Section One 
East ETJ (None) Vacant Land 
West ETJ (None) Vacant Land 

 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section Two 

Page 2 
 

COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The subject property is within 
the Low-Density Residential land use plan designation.  The proposed subdivision is not 
within the guidelines of Low-Density Residential land use designation as the average lot 
size is around 6,250 sq. ft. The proposed development is in conformance with the 
approved development agreement.    
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The preliminary plat for this section of the development was 
approved on September 16, 2013.   
 

CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is located 
north of the intersection of Post Rd. (CR 58), a major thoroughfare with a minimum 
right-of-way 120’, and Linden Creek, a local street with a minimum right-of-way of 60’.   
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: The proposed Final Plat 
should not have any significant adverse impacts on any surrounding structures or uses 
as the proposed development is in conformance with the approved development 
agreement.     
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A traffic impact analysis was submitted and 
approved by the city’s Engineering Department as part of the Savannah Development 
Agreement.  All requirements of the analysis have been met. 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to this 
subdivision through Municipal Utility District (MUD) 22.  
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance with the 
Savannah Development Agreement.    
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees have been paid as required by the 
development agreement.      
 
1% INSPECTION FEES:  As required by the Savannah Development agreement, the 
1% inspection fees have been paid in full.   
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there were no additional comments.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section Two as proposed by the applicant, for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section Two 

Page 3 
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan and the 
Development Agreement.   
 

3. The Savannah Development Agreement will assure the development of this 
property is in conformance with the goals of the city. 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Laurel Heights at Savannah Section Two Plat 

 
 

 
 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section TwoBrazoria

POST RD

FRIO DR

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DRVICTORIA AVE

CENTRAL AVE

SA
VA

NN
AH

 PK
WY

JASPER DR

SAVANNAH BEND DR

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

CR 173

CAMERON DR

HUDSPETH DR

ANGELINA DR

SILVER SAGE LN

LILAC GROVE LN

RIO RAMOS ST ¯0 340 680170 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section Two

Low Density Residential

Brazoria
POST RD

FRIO DR

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DRVICTORIA AVE

CENTRAL AVE

SA
VA

NN
AH

 PK
WY

JASPER DR

SAVANNAH BEND DR

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

CR 173

CAMERON DR

HUDSPETH DR

ANGELINA DR

SILVER SAGE LN

LILAC GROVE LN

RIO RAMOS ST ¯0 340 680170 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section Two

POST RD

FRIO DR

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DRVICTORIA AVE

CENTRAL AVE

SA
VA

NN
AH

 PK
WY

JASPER DR

SAVANNAH BEND DR

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

CR 173

CAMERON DR

HUDSPETH DR

ANGELINA DR

SILVER SAGE LN

LILAC GROVE LN

RIO RAMOS ST ¯0 340 680170 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

E 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    11/12/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Sec. Three 

 
 

 Old Business          New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel Heights at 
Savannah Section Three, generally located at the Northwest corner of Post Road (CR 
58) and Linden Creek Lane, proposing a 28 lot single-family residential subdivision 

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
11/14/2013 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section Three 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION   
MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 2013 
 

 
 

FINAL PLAT OF LAUREL HEIGHTS AT SAVANNAH SECTION THREE 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
Savannah Development LTD., owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section Three, generally located at the Northwest corner of 
Post Road (CR 58) and Linden Creek Lane, proposing a 28 lot single-family 
residential subdivision, on the following described property, to wit 
 
Legal Description:  Being 31.2 acres of land located in the H.T. & B.R.R. 
Survey, Abstract 302, Official Records of said Brazoria County, Texas  
 
 
General Location: Located at the Northwest corner of Post Road (CR 58) and 

Linden Creek Lane 
  

 
SUMMARY:  The applicant is requesting approval of a Final Plat for a 28 lot single-
family subdivision in Savannah. Along with the proposed single family residential lots, 
this plat contains an 18.72 acre reserve for detention/amenity lake.  This proposed 
subdivision is fully within the Extraterritorial Jurisdiction (ETJ) of the City of Pearland.  
As the property is in the ETJ, the city zoning ordinance does not apply. However, this 
development is governed by a development agreement which adheres to the zoning 
ordinance dealing specifically with lot sizes, density, and setback requirements. The 
proposed section is in full compliance with the approved Development Agreement.  
 
UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE: The development requirements within the UDC do 
not apply as this development is located within the ETJ.  
 
SAVANNAH DEVELOPMENT AGREEMENT:  The submitted Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section Three appears to be in conformance with the approved 
Savannah Development agreement.   
    
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 
 
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North ETJ (None) Vacant Land  
South ETJ (None) Post Rd. (CR 58) 
East ETJ (None) Vacant Land 
West ETJ (None) Vacant Land 

 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section Three 

Page 2 
 

COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLACE: The subject property is within 
the Low-Density Residential land use plan designation.  The proposed subdivision is 
within the guidelines of Low-Density Residential land use designation as the average lot 
size is 8,750 sq. ft. The proposed development is in conformance with the approved 
development agreement.    
 
PLATTING STATUS:  The preliminary plat for this section of the development was 
approved on September 16, 2013.   
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is located 
at the corner of Post Rd. (CR 58), a major thoroughfare with a minimum right-of-way 
120’, and Linden Creek, a local street with a minimum right-of-way of 60’.   
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: The proposed Final Plat 
should not have any significant adverse impacts on any surrounding structures or uses 
as the proposed development is in conformance with the approved development 
agreement.    
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A traffic impact analysis was submitted and 
approved by the city’s Engineering Department as part of the Savannah Development 
Agreement.  All requirements of the analysis have been met. 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to this 
subdivision through Municipal Utility District (MUD) 22.  
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance to the 
Savannah Development Agreement.    
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees have been paid as required by the 
development agreement.      
 
1% INSPECTION FEES:  As required by the Savannah Development agreement, the 
1% inspection fees have been paid in full. 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  This request has been reviewed by the City’s Development 
Review Committee and there were no additional comments.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Laurel 
Heights at Savannah Section Three as proposed by the applicant, for the following 
reasons: 
 

1. The proposed subdivision will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan and Development 
Agreement.   



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Laurel Heights at Savannah Section Three 

Page 3 
 

 
3. The Savannah Development Agreement will assure the development of this 

property is in conformance with the goals of the city 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Laurel Heights at Savannah Section Three Plat 

 
 

 
 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section ThreeBrazoria

POST RD

FRIO DR

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DR

CENTRAL AVE

SA
VA

NN
AH

 PK
WY

JASPER DR

SAVANNAH BEND DR

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

CR 173

CAMERON DR

HUDSPETH DR

ANGELINA DR

SILVER SAGE LN

LILAC GROVE LN

RIO RAMOS ST ¯0 340 680170 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section Three

Low Density Residential

Brazoria
POST RD

FRIO DR

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DR

CENTRAL AVE

SA
VA

NN
AH

 PK
WY

JASPER DR

SAVANNAH BEND DR

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

CR 173

CAMERON DR

HUDSPETH DR

ANGELINA DR

SILVER SAGE LN

LILAC GROVE LN

RIO RAMOS ST ¯0 340 680170 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map

Final Plat of
Laurel Heights at 
Savannnah Section Three

POST RD

FRIO DR

CR 174

CR 174A

ELLIS DR

CENTRAL AVE

SA
VA

NN
AH

 PK
WY

JASPER DR

SAVANNAH BEND DR

DONLEY DR

GRAYSON DR

BANDERA DR

CR 173

CAMERON DR

HUDSPETH DR

ANGELINA DR

SILVER SAGE LN

LILAC GROVE LN

RIO RAMOS ST ¯0 340 680170 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

F 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    11/12/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Final Plat of Southern Trails Section 13 

 
 

  Old Business        New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of 
CL Ashton Woods, LP, owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Southern Trails Section 
13, a 36 lot single-family residential subdivision, generally located 500’ south of the 
intersection of Kingsley and Walnut Place Ln. on 8.1 acres.  

Staff Recommendation:  Approval  

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
11/14/2013 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Southern Trails Section 13 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF NOVEMBER 18, 2013 
 

 
 
FINAL PLAT OF SOUTHERN TRAILS SECTION 13 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez of LJA Engineering, applicant, on behalf of CL Ashton 
Woods, LP, owner, for approval of a Final Plat of Southern Trails Section 13, a 36 
lot single-family residential subdivision on the following described property, to wit. 

 
Legal Description: Being 8.1 acres of land out of the H.T. & B. R.R. Company 
Survey, Sec. 80, A-564, City of Pearland, Brazoria County Texas, also being out of 
Allison-Richey Gulf Coast Home Company Subdivision as recorded in Volume 2, 
Page 98 B.C.P.R. City of Pearland, Brazoria County, Texas 
 
General Location: Approximately 500’ south of the southeast corner of the 
intersection of Kingsley and Walnut Place Ln. 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Final Plat of Southern Trails Section 13, a proposed 36 
lot single-family residential subdivision on approximately 8.1acres. This proposed 
subdivision is located within the Southern Trails Planned Unit Development which was 
approved on February, 23 2004.  This Final Plat is for Section 13 of the 522.63 acre 
development. This is one of the final phases before the PD is built out.  
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES: 
 
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North PUD (Southern Trails) Single Family Residential 
South ETJ Single Family Residential, 

Vacant Land 
East PUD (Southern Trails) Southern Trails Section 9 
West ETJ Vacant Land, Single Family 

Residential 
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE SOUTHERN TRAILS PUD:  The above submittal is in 
conformance with the Southern Trails Planned Development.  No amenities are required as 
part of this section of the development.   
  
PLATTING STATUS:  The submitted plat is in conformance with the approved Master Plat 
as well as the Preliminary Plat which was approved on April 1, 2013.  

 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Southern Trails Section 13 

Page 2 
 

 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN:  The Future Land Use 
designation for the subject land is Low-Density Residential.  This designation allows for a 
maximum of four dwelling units an acre.  This Final Plat for Southern Trails Section 13 is in 
conformance with the Low-Density Residential land use designation.    
 
CONFORMANCE WITH THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  The subject property is served by 
Kingsley Drive, a secondary thoroughfare with a minimum right-of-way of 100’, and local 
streets with a minimum right-of-way of 50’ within this development.    
 
IMPACT ON EXISTING AND FUTURE DEVELOPMENT: The proposed Final Plat should 
not have any significant adverse impacts on any surrounding structures or uses as the 
proposed development is in conformance with the approved planned development.    
 
TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A traffic impact analysis was submitted and 
approved by the city’s Engineering Department as part of the Savannah Development 
Agreement.  All requirements of the analysis have been met. 
 
UTILITIES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  The subject parcel will be served by  water and 
sewer from the existing Southern Trails Development.  
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  Detention will be provided in accordance to the 
Southern Trails Planned Development.    
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees for Section 13 have been paid in full.  
  
1% INSPECTION FEES:  Inspection fees for Section 13 have been paid in full. 
 
ADDITONAL COMMENTS:  The Southern Trails Planned Unit Development had an 
approved pedestrian crossing on Kingsley Drive. The crossing has now been constructed 
per the requirements of the amended Planned Development Document.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of this Final Plat of Southern 
Trails Section 13 as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed final plat will not cause any adverse impacts on the surrounding 
properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan.   
 

3. This request is in conformance with the Southern Trails Planned Development as 
well as the Unified Development Code.   

 
 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Final Plat of Southern Trails Section 13 

Page 3 
 

 
SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  

 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Zoning Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Southern Trails Section 13 Plat 

 



Vicinity Map
Final Plat 
Southern Trails 
Section 13

PUD

RE

CR 48 IVY RUN LN

MELONY HILL LN

HARVEST MOON LN

DO
VE

 SH
OR

ES
 LN

ARCHWOOD LN
NO

BL
EW

OO
D 

CT

BR
AN

TL
Y C

OV
E C

T
¯0 140 28070 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Final Plat 
Southern Trails 
Section 13

Low Density Residential

Parks

Major Nodes

CR 48 IVY RUN LN

MELONY HILL LN

HARVEST MOON LN

DO
VE

 SH
OR

ES
 LN

ARCHWOOD LN
NO

BL
EW

OO
D 

CT

BR
AN

TL
Y C

OV
E C

T
¯0 140 28070 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Final Plat 
Southern Trails 
Section 13

CR 48 IVY RUN LN

MELONY HILL LN

HARVEST MOON LN

DO
VE

 SH
OR

ES
 LN

ARCHWOOD LN
NO

BL
EW

OO
D 

CT

BR
AN

TL
Y C

OV
E C

T
¯0 140 28070 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA  
ITEM  

 
 

 
 
 

G 
 
 

 



City of Pearland 

3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 
Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 

   

 
 

 

 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Ian Clowes 
 
DATE:    11/12/2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: Preliminary Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 56 

 
 

     Old Business          New Business     Discussion Item    Workshop 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Summary:  A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant, on behalf of 741 
SCR, LTD, owner, for approval of a Preliminary Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 
56, a 61 lot single-family residential subdivision, generally located at the Southwest 
corner of Windward Bay Dr. and Arcadia Bay Dr.  

 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  Approval 
 

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
11/14/2013 
__________________ 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Preliminary Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch – 56 

Page 1 
 

PLANNING AND ZONING COMMISSION 
MEETING OF AUGUST 5, 2013 

 
 
PRELIMINARY REPLAT OF SHADOW CREEK RANCH– SF 56 
 

A request by Rene Rodriguez, from LJA, applicant, on behalf of 741 SCR, LTD, 
owner, for approval of a Preliminary Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 56, a 
61 lot single-family residential subdivision, to wit: 
 
Legal Description: A subdivision of 15.913 acres of land situated in the S.G. 
Haynie Survey, Abstract 620, City of Pearland, Fort Bend County, Texas also being 
a replat of Shadow Creek Ranch SF-56F, recorded under F.N. 20060295, 
F.B.C.O.P.R. 
 
General Location: Located at the Southwest corner of Windward Bay Dr. and 

Arcadia Bay Dr.  
 
  

 
SUMMARY:  This is a request for a Preliminary Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch– SF 
56, a proposed 61 lot single-family residential subdivision on 11.080 acres.  This 
proposed subdivision is located within the Shadow Creek Ranch Planned Unit 
Development.  The Shadow Creek Ranch PUD was approved in September of 1999 for 
approximately 3305 acres of land within the City of Pearland.  
 
This section of Shadow Creek Ranch currently has an approved Preliminary and Final 
Plat, though none of the infrastructure has been completed at this time.  The original 
final plat was approved in 2006 and contained 80 lots.  The applicant wishes to replat 
the section, reconfigure the roads and reduce the number of lots from 80 down to 61.   
 
 
SURROUNDING ZONING AND LAND USES:  
 

  Zoning Land Use 
North PUD (Planned Unit 

Development – Shadow Creek) Single Family Residential 

South PUD (Planned Unit 
Development – Shadow Creek) 

Vacant Single Family 
Residential 

East PUD (Planned Unit 
Development – Shadow Creek) Single Family Residential 

West PUD (Planned Unit 
Development – Shadow Creek) Vacant Commercial 

 

 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Preliminary Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch – 56 

Page 2 
 

UNIFIED DEVELOPMENT CODE:  The Unified Development Code does not apply to 
the subject development as it is under the previous Subdivision Ordinance and Land 
Use and Urban Development Guidelines.  
 
SHADOW CREEK RANCH PUD:  The Shadow Creek Ranch development allows for a 
combination of single family lots, multi-family, commercial sites, parks, and wet and dry 
detention.  This Preliminary Plat has 1.509 acres of reserve open space.   
 
SHADOW CREEK RANCH: R-5 SINGLE FAMILY RESIDENTIAL DISTRICT: This 
Preliminary Replat depicts a variety of lot sizes, which fall under the R-5 Single Family 
Dwelling District.  The requirements of the R-5 Single-Family Dwelling District have 
been summarized in Table 2.  This Preliminary Replat has a minimum lot size of 6,750 
square foot lots (50’ x 135’), which is above the required 6,000 SF that is required.  
 

Table 2: R-5 Single-Family Dwelling District  

Area and Height Requirements   

Minimum Lot Size: 6,000 square feet 

Minimum Lot Width: 50 Feet 

Maximum Lot Coverage: 60% 

Maximum Height 35 Feet 

  
LAND USE & URBAN DEVELOPMENT ORDINANCE: The Shadow Creek Ranch 
Planned Unit Development has its own land use regulations from the approved PUD, in 
addition to the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. The proposed plat does 
conform to the Land Use and Urban Development Regulations.   
 
PLATTING STATUS: This section of Shadow Creek Ranch was originally approved for 
a Preliminary and Final plat in 2006.  The applicant would now like to reconfigure the lot 
and road layout. This requires replatting of both the preliminary and final plats.   
 
COMFORMANCE TO THE COMPREHENSIVE PLAN: The subject property is within 
the Medium Density Residential land use designations.  The Medium Density 
Residential land use designation is for medium lot single family development. This 
submittal is  in conformance with this land use designation as the proposed lots are a 
minimum of 6,600 square feet. The City of Pearland uses the Future Land Use Plan as 
a guide to implement zoning, in this case, the approved Shadow Creek Ranch PUD had 
a higher density then the Future Land Use Plan allows.  
 
CONFORMANCE TO THE THOROUGHFARE PLAN:  This section of Shadow Creek 
will be served by Windward Bay Dr. which is a minor collector with a minimum right-of-
way of 60’.  This section will also connect with SF-55B to the north via the local street, 
Field Hollow Dr. which requires a minimum right-of-way of 50’. 
 



 
 

P&Z 11/18/2013 
Preliminary Replat of Shadow Creek Ranch – 56 

Page 3 
 

TRAFFIC AND TRANSPORTATION:  A Traffic Impact Analysis has been reviewed and 
accepted by the Engineering Department. 
 
UTILIITES AND INFRASTRUCTURE:  Water and sewer service are available to for this 
subdivision.   
 
STORMWATER MANAGEMENT:  A Preliminary Drainage Plan will have to be 
approved by the Engineering Department prior to the approval of any final plat.     
 
PARKS, OPEN SPACE, AND TREES:  Park fees are not required within the Shadow 
Creek Ranch Development.  
 
STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends approval of this Preliminary Replat of 
Shadow Creek Ranch – SF 56 as proposed by the applicant for the following reasons: 
 

1. The proposed preliminary replat will not cause any adverse impacts on the 
surrounding properties.  
 

2. This request is in conformance with the comprehensive plan.   
 

3. This request is in conformance with the Shadow Creek Ranch Development as 
well as the Land Use and Urban Development Ordinance. 

 
 

SUPPORTING DOCUMENTS:  
 Vicinity Map 
 Land Use Map 
 Zoning Map 
 Aerial Map 
 Plat of Shadow Creek Ranch – SF 56 
 



Zoning and Vicinity Map
Preliminary Replat of
Shadow Creek
Ranch SF-56

PUD

FM
 52

1

BROADWAY ST

WINDWARD BAY DR

HILL CREEK BEND

BENTVINE DR

LE
AF

WO
OD

 LN LACEBROOK LN

LAKEWATER DR

CROSS CREEK DR

¯0 190 38095 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



FLUP Map
Preliminary Replat of
Shadow Creek
Ranch SF-56

Medium Density Residential

A-1/2 Ac. Lots (Suburban Res)

High Density Residential

Business Commercial

Low Density Residential

FM
 52

1

BROADWAY ST

WINDWARD BAY DR

HILL CREEK BEND

BENTVINE DR

LE
AF

WO
OD

 LN LACEBROOK LN

LAKEWATER DR

CROSS CREEK DR

¯0 190 38095 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.



Aerial Map
Preliminary Replat of
Shadow Creek
Ranch SF-56

FM
 52

1

BROADWAY ST

WINDWARD BAY DR

HILL CREEK BEND

BENTVINE DR

LE
AF

WO
OD

 LN LACEBROOK LN

LAKEWATER DR

CROSS CREEK DR

¯0 190 38095 Feet

This product is for information purposes and
may not have been prepared for or be suitable
for legal, engineering, or surveying purposes.
It does not represent an on-the-ground survey
and represents only the approximate relative
location of property boundaries.







P&Z AGENDA 
ITEM  

H 

Discussion Items

1.  Comprehensive Plan Update
2.  Zoning Update
3.  Texas APA Conference
4.  Commissioners Report
5.  Next P&Z Regular Meeting December 2, 2013



   
 

 
 
 

    City of Pearland 
   

 

P&Z AGENDA REQUEST  
 
 

TO:    Planning & Zoning Commission 
 
REQUESTOR:   Johnna Matthews, Senior Planner 
 
DATE:    November 14, 2013 
 
AGENDA ITEM SUBJECT: 6 Month Zone Change and CUP Update –           
November 2013 

 
 

� Old Business      �   New Business  �   Discussion Item �   Workshop 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

1. Summary: See attached spreadsheet. 

2. Staff Recommendation: Provide feedback and questions to Staff. 

Agenda Reviewed by: 
 
HE 
__________________ 
 
Date Reviewed: 
 
11/14/13 
__________________ 
 

City of Pearland 
3519 Liberty Drive, Pearland, Texas  77581 

Ph: (281) 652-1768  |  Fax: (281) 652-1702   |   www.cityofpearland.com 



Zoning Update -May - November 2013  

Zone Changes

Appl No Property Owner, Applicant Address or Location of Property JPH
P & Z 

Meeting P & Z Action
Current     
Zoning

Proposed 
Zoning

City Council 
Status

2013-08Z Grocers Supply Co. Inc./Collin Tadlock 7201 Broadway 5/20/2013 5/20/2013 Denial GB GC Denial
2013-09Z Expre Realty, LTD SW corner of Bardet and Wagon Trail 6/17/2013 6/17/2013 Approved GB GC Approved
2013-10Z Bay Area Equestrian Properties 1908 Broadway 6/17/2013 6/17/2013 Approved R-1 GB Approved
2013-11Z T&B Alexander Family, LTD, Gehan Homes ~500' South of McHard on West side of Old Alvin 6/17/2013 6/17/2013 Approved GC R-1 Approved
2013-12Z Erinn Brown 4606 Walnut 7/15/2013 7/15/2013 Approved R-2 OP Approved
2013-13Z Lennar Homes, Keith Schoonover NW Corner Cullen/McHard 7/15/2013 7/15/2013 Approved R-3 GB Approved
2013-14Z Jawad Hussain 5306 Broadway 9/16/2013 9/16/2013 Approved NS GB Approved
2013-15Z Parkside 59/288 Ltd NW corner SH288/CR59 9/16/2013 9/16/2013 Approved PD PD Approved
2013-16Z James Leach 2106 O'Day 10/21/2013 10/21/2013 Withdrawn G/O - MU GC Withdrawn

CUP's

Appl No Property Owner, Applicant Address or Location of Property Proposed Use JPH P & Z Meeting P & Z Action
Current 
Zoning

City Council 
Status

CUP 2013-04 Amegy Bank/James Elmore 8400 Block of Broadway Auto Wash - Self Service 5/20/2013 5/20/2013 Approved GB Approved
CUP 2013-05 Houston Chinese Church, Raymond Zhuo Miller Ranch, South of Camelot Church, Temple, Place of Worship 7/15/2013 7/15/2013 Approved R-1 Approved
CUP 2013-06 James Pace, Renea Sartain 3901 E. Plum Adult Daycare 7/15/2013 7/15/2013 Approved OT-MU Approved
CUP 2013-07 Sherwood Village Associates 3216 Broadway Auto Repair - Minor n/a n/a n/a GB Withdrawn
CUP 2013-08 Rebound Properties, LTD 2752 Sunrise Emergency Care Center 10/21/2013 10/21/2013 Approved GB Pending
CUP 2013-09 James Leach 2106 O'Day Auto Repair - Major 10/21/2013 10/21/2013 Withdrawn G/O-MU Withdrawn
CUP 2013-10 CVS Pharmacy/Greg McGahey 2906 Broadway Emergency Care Center 11/18/2013 11/18/2013 Pending GB Pending



 
 
 
 
 

ADJOURN  
 

MEETING 


	1 P&Z Agenda Coversheet
	2 P&Z Agenda November 18, 2013 P&Z
	3 EXCUSE ABSENCE
	4 APPROVAL OF MINUTES
	6 NEW BUSINESS
	7 AGENDA ITEM A
	8 A. CUP 2013-10 Packet
	1.  CUP 2013-10 JPH Agenda
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. CUP 2013-10 Staff Report
	3. CUP 2013-10 Vicinity and Zoning Map
	4. CUP 2013-10 Abutter Map
	5. CUP 2010-10 Abutter List
	5. Abutter List CUP 2013-10

	6. CUP 2013-10 FLUP Map
	7. CUP 2013-10 Aerial Map
	8. CUP 2013-10 Applicant Packet

	9 AGENDA ITEM B
	10 B. T - 16 Packet
	1.  UDC T-16 JPH Agenda
	I. CALL TO ORDER
	II. PURPOSE OF HEARING
	III. APPLICATION INFORMATION AND CASE SUMMARY

	2. UDC T-16 11-18-2013 Joint Public Hearing
	CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS
	AGENDA OF: November 18, 2013 ITEM NO.:   
	DATE SUBMITTED: November 5, 2013        DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning
	PREPARED BY: Ian Clowes and  PRESENTOR:  Harold Ellis
	AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A
	ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A



	3. Exhibit 1 UDC T-16 09-16-2013 Agenda Request
	CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS
	AGENDA OF: September 16, 2013 ITEM NO.:   
	DATE SUBMITTED: August 22, 2013        DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning
	PREPARED BY: Ian Clowes and  PRESENTOR:  Harold Ellis
	AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A
	ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A



	4. Exhibit 2 UDC T-16 10-07-2013 Agenda Request
	CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS
	AGENDA OF: October 7, 2013 ITEM NO.:   
	DATE SUBMITTED: September 25, 2013  DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning
	PREPARED BY:  Harold Ellis PRESENTOR:     Harold Ellis                                                                                    
	AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A
	ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A



	5. Exhibit 3 UDC T-16 11-4-2013 Agenda Request
	CITY OF PEARLAND, TEXAS
	AGENDA OF: November 4, 2013 ITEM NO.:   
	DATE SUBMITTED: October 29, 2013        DEPT. OF ORIGIN: Planning
	PREPARED BY: Harold Ellis and PRESENTOR:  Lata Krishnarao
	AMOUNT AVAILABLE:   N/A PROJECT NO.:   N/A
	ACCOUNT NO.:   N/A




	11 AGENDA ITEM C
	12 C Laurel Heights Sec 1 Packet
	1 Laurel Heights Sec. 1 Agenda Request
	2 Laurel Heights Sec. 1 Staff Report
	3 Vicinity
	4 Futurelanduse
	5 Aerial
	6 Laurel Heights Section 1 Final
	MYSCAN_20131101_0001.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20131101_0002


	13 AGENDA ITEM D
	14 D Laurel Heights Sec 2 Packet
	1 Laurel Heights Sec. 2 Agenda Request
	2 Laurel Heights Sec. 2 Staff Report
	3 Vicinity
	4 Futurelanduse
	5 Aerial
	6 Laurel Heights Section 2 Final
	MYSCAN_20131101_0003.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20131101_0004


	15 AGENDA ITEM E
	16 E Laurel Heights Sec 3 Packet
	1 Laurel Heights Sec. 3 Agenda Request
	2 Laurel Heights Sec. 3 Staff Report
	3 Vicinity
	4 Futurelanduse
	5 Aerial
	6 Laurel Heights Section 3 Final
	MYSCAN_20131101_0005.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20131101_0006


	17 AGENDA ITEM F
	18 F Southern Trails Sec 13 Packet
	1 Agenda Request Form- P&Z
	2 Staff Report Southern Trails Section 13
	3 Vicinity Map
	4 FLUP
	5 Aerial
	6 Southern Trails Sec.13 Final
	MYSCAN_20131101_0003.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20131101_0004


	19 AGENDA ITEM G
	20 G SCR SF-56 Packet
	1 Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 56 Agenda Request
	2 Staff Report Shadow Creek Ranch - SF 56
	3 Vicinity Map
	4 FLUP Map
	5 Aerial Map
	6 Shadow Creek Ranch SF-56 Prelim Replat
	MYSCAN_20131106_0001.PDF.pdf
	MYSCAN_20131106_0002


	21 AGENDA ITEM H
	22 H Discussion Packet
	1 PZ Mtg 6 Month Update
	2 6 mo PZ Update
	Sheet1


	23 ADJOURN MEETING








